Public Document Pack

Licensing (General) Sub-Committee

Wednesday, 5th October,
2022
at 2.00 pm

PLEASE NOTE TIME OF MEETING

Council Chamber - Civic Centre

This meeting is open to the public
Members

Councillor Bunday
Councillor Furnell
Councillor Noon
Councillor Vassiliou
Councillor Vaughan

Contacts

Democratic Support Officer

Ed Grimshaw

Tel: 023 8083 2390

Email: ed.grimshaw@southampton.gov.uk

Executive Director Communities, Culture &
Homes

Mary D’Arcy

Tel: 023 8083 4611

Email: mary.d’arcy@southampton.gov.uk



mailto:pat.wood@southampton.gov.uk
mailto:mitch.sanders@southampton.gov.uk

PUBLIC INFORMATION

Terms of Reference

The Sub-Committee deals with licences,
permits and forms of consent (other than
those for which the Council is responsible
under the Licensing Act 2003), including

e Hackney carriage and private hire

drivers, vehicles and operators
e Street trading
e Sex establishments

Relevant Representations

Those who have made relevant
representations may address the meeting
about the matter in which they have an
interest with the consent of the Chair.

Southampton: Corporate Plan 2020-2025 sets
out the four key outcomes:

e Communities, culture & homes -
Celebrating the diversity of cultures within
Southampton; enhancing our cultural and
historical offer and using these to help
transform our communities.

e Green City - Providing a sustainable,
clean, healthy and safe environment for
everyone. Nurturing green spaces and
embracing our waterfront.

e Place shaping - Delivering a city for future
generations. Using data, insight and vision
to meet the current and future needs of the
city.

o Wellbeing - Start well, live well, age well,
die well; working with other partners and
other services to make sure that customers
get the right help at the right time

Smoking policy — The Council operates
a no-smoking policy in all civic buildings.
Mobile Telephones:- Please switch your
mobile telephones to silent whilst in the
meeting

Use of Social Media:- The Council
supports the video or audio recording of
meetings open to the public, for either live
or subsequent broadcast. However, if, in
the Chair’s opinion, a person filming or
recording a meeting or taking
photographs is interrupting proceedings
or causing a disturbance, under the
Council’'s Standing Orders the person can
be ordered to stop their activity, or to
leave the meeting. By entering the
meeting room you are consenting to
being recorded and to the use of those
images and recordings for broadcasting
and or/training purposes. The meeting
may be recorded by the press or
members of the public.

Any person or organisation filming,
recording or broadcasting any meeting of
the Council is responsible for any claims
or other liability resulting from them doing
So.

Details of the Council’s Guidance on the
recording of meetings is available on the
Council’s website.

Fire Procedure — Should the fire alarm
sound during the meeting leave the
building by the nearest available exit and
assemble in the Civic Centre forecourt
car park.

Access — Access is available for disabled
people. Please contact the Democratic
Support Officer who will help to make any
necessary arrangements.

Dates of Meetings: Municipal Year
2021/22

Meetings of the Committee are held as
and when required.



CONDUCT OF MEETING

TERMS OF REFERENCE BUSINESS TO BE DISCUSSED

The terms of reference of the Licensing Only those items listed on the attached
Committee are contained in Part 3 agenda may be considered at this meeting.
(Schedule 2) of the Council’s

Constitution.

Rules of Procedure Quorum

The meeting is governed by the Council The minimum number of appointed Members
Procedure Rules as set out in Part 4 of required to be in attendance to hold the

the Constitution. meeting is 3.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

Members are required to disclose, in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct,
both the existence and nature of any “Disclosable Pecuniary Interest” or “Other Interest”
they may have in relation to matters for consideration on this Agenda.

DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS

A Member must regard himself or herself as having a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in
any matter that they or their spouse, partner, a person they are living with as husband or
wife, or a person with whom they are living as if they were a civil partner in relation to:

(i) Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain.
(if) Sponsorship:
Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from Southampton City
Council) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any expense incurred by
you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your election expenses. This includes
any payment or financial benefit from a trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union
and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.
(i) Any contract which is made between you / your spouse etc (or a body in which the you
/ your spouse etc has a beneficial interest) and Southampton City Council under which
goods or services are to be provided or works are to be executed, and which has not been
fully discharged.
(iv) Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of Southampton.
(v) Any license (held alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of
Southampton for a month or longer.
(vi) Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) the landlord is Southampton City Council and
the tenant is a body in which you / your spouse etc has a beneficial interests.
(vii) Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where that body (to your knowledge) has
a place of business or land in the area of Southampton, and either:
a) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the
total issued share capital of that body, or
b) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal value of
the shares of any one class in which you / your spouse etc has a beneficial interest
that exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class.



Other Interests

A Member must regard himself or herself as having an, ‘Other Interest’ in any membership

of, or occupation of a position of general control or management in:

Any body to which they have been appointed or nominated by Southampton City Council

Any public authority or body exercising functions of a public nature

Any body directed to charitable purposes

Any body whose principal purpose includes the influence of public opinion or policy

Principles of Decision Making

All decisions of the Council will be made in accordance with the following principles:-

proportionality (i.e. the action must be proportionate to the desired outcome);
due consultation and the taking of professional advice from officers;

respect for human rights;

a presumption in favour of openness, accountability and transparency;
setting out what options have been considered;

setting out reasons for the decision; and

clarity of aims and desired outcomes.

In exercising discretion, the decision maker must:

understand the law that regulates the decision making power and gives effect to it.
The decision-maker must direct itself properly in law;

take into account all relevant matters (those matters which the law requires the
authority as a matter of legal obligation to take into account);

leave out of account irrelevant considerations;

act for a proper purpose, exercising its powers for the public good;

not reach a decision which no authority acting reasonably could reach, (also known as
the “rationality” or “taking leave of your senses” principle);

comply with the rule that local government finance is to be conducted on an annual
basis. Save to the extent authorised by Parliament, ‘live now, pay later’ and forward
funding are unlawful; and

act with procedural propriety in accordance with the rules of fairness.



AGENDA

1 APOLOGIES AND CHANGES IN MEMBERSHIP (IF ANY)

To note any changes in the membership of the Sub-Committee made in accordance
with Council Procedure Rule 4.3.

2 DISCLOSURE OF PERSONAL AND PECUNIARY INTERESTS

In accordance with the Localism Act 2011, and the Council’s Code of Conduct,
Members to disclose any personal or pecuniary interests in any matter included on the
agenda for this meeting.

3 STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIR

4  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (INCLUDING MATTERS ARISING)

To approve and sign as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 26"
November 2009 and to deal with any matters arising, attached.

5 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC - LEGAL ADVICE

At a predetermined point during the consideration of all items the Sub-Committee may
move into private session in order to receive legal advice when determining issues.
The parties to the hearing, press and the public, unless otherwise excluded by the
Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005, will be invited to return immediately
following that private session at which time the matter will be determined and the
decision of the Sub-Committee will be announced.

6 APPLICATION FOR A RENEWAL OF A SEXUAL ENTERTAINMENT LICENCE -
PLAYHOUSE, BASEMENT, 35 LONDON ROAD, SOUTHAMPTON SO15 2AD
(Pages 1 - 124)

Application for a renewal of a sexual entertainment licence (SEV) in respect of
Playhouse, Basement, 35 London Road, Southampton SO15 2AD

Tuesday, 27 September 2022 Executive Director Communities, Culture & Homes



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

DECISION-MAKER: LICENSING (GENERAL) SUB-COMMITTEE

SUBJECT: APPLICATION FOR RENEWAL OF A SEXUAL
ENTERTAINENT VENUE (SEV) LICENCE —
PLAYHOUSE, BASEMENT, 35 LONDON ROAD,
SOUTHAMPTON, SO15 2AD

DATE OF DECISION: WEDNESDAY 5™ OCTOBER 2022 14:00 HOURS
REPORT OF: SERVICE DIRECTOR - COMMUNITIES, CULTURE
AND HOMES
CONTACT DETAILS
AUTHOR: Name: | lan McGuiness Tel: | 023 8083 4231
E-mail: ian.mcguiness@southampton.gov.uk
Director Name: | Rosie Zambra Tel: | 023 8083 4044

E-mail: | rosie.zambra@southampton.gov.uk

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY
N/A

BRIEF SUMMARY

The Licensing (General) Sub-Committee is requested to determine the application for the
renewal of a Sexual Entertainment Venue (SEV) Licence from London Road Leisure
Limited in respect of Playhouse, Basement, 35 London Road, Southampton, SO15 2AD.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

1. (1) For the Sub-Committee to consider and determine the application for
the annual renewal of the Sexual Entertainment Venue licence in
respect of Playhouse, Basement, 35 London Road, Southampton,

SO15 2AD.
REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS
2. The determination of applications for renewal of sexual entertainment venue

licences is not delegated to Officers if representations are received, therefore it is
for the Sub-Committee to consider and determine this application.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED

3. None

DETAIL (Including consultation carried out)

4. The Council originally adopted Schedule 3 of the Local Government
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 in so far as they related to sex shops
and sex cinemas in 1983 and readopted them with effect from 3" July 1995.

5. The Policing and Crime Act 2009 amended the Local Government
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 with effect from 6™ April 2010, by
introducing a new category of sex establishment called Sexual Entertainment
Venues (SEVSs) enabling local licensing authorities to adopt provisions for the
regulation of lap dancing clubs and similar venues under Schedule 3 of the
1982 Act. Previously the POpEL YRS limited to sex shops and sex cinemas.




On 11th July 2012, Council resolved to adopt the provisions of schedule 3 to
the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 which relate to
the licensing of SEVs.

London Road Leisure Limited has held a sexual entertainment venue (SEV)
licence in Southampton since 15" July 2021 following a transfer application
issued with delegated powers, with the licence to be renewed annually.

Other premises operated within the Company Group are Playhouse Cardiff,
For Your Eyes Only Cardiff and Fantasy Lounge Cardiff.

The licence was previously held by Southampton Clubs Limited, although
they did not trade as an SEV while holding the licence.

On 29" July 2022 an application was made by London Road Leisure Limited
to renew the SEV licence in respect of Playhouse, Basement, 35 London
Road, Southampton, SO15 2AD.

A copy of the application is attached as Appendix 1.

In summary, the application is for the annual renewal of the SEV licence,
there are no proposed changes. The current licence expired on 27" August
2022. A copy of the current licence is attached as Appendix 2.

A notice was displayed at the premises throughout the consultation period.
A notice was also published in a local newspaper. A copy of the application
was served on Hampshire Constabulary Force Licensing Team.

10.

Hampshire Constabulary Force Licensing Team have not responded to this
application, however the licence holder worked closely with both Licensing
and Police Licensing in the lead up to trading and the licence holder
demonstrated compliance with all relevant Licensing requirements and no
concerns were raised at that time.

11.

Playhouse currently benefits from a premises licence issued under the
Licensing Act 2003. This licence authorises regulated entertainment and the
supply by retail of alcohol from 10:00 to 04:30 hours seven days a week and
the provision of late-night refreshment from 23:00 until 04:30 hours seven
days a week. A copy of the current licence is attached as Appendix 3.

12.

SEV Licences are granted for a period of no more than one year but may be
cancelled at the request of the licence holder or revoked by the Licensing
Authority at any time.

13.

The Authority may:

e Grant the application; or
e Make such variations as they think fit; or
e Refuse the application.

14.

Any person objecting to an application for the renewal of a SEV licence is
required to give notice of their objection in writing to the local authority, no
later than 28 days after the date of the application.

Three public objections were received in relation to this application within the
28-day consultation period. They are attached as Appendix 4, Appendix 5,
Appendix 6, Appendix 7 and Appendix 8.

15.

The Act does not provide objectors with an explicit provision to be heard in
person by the Sub-Committee. However, those persons from whom valid
objections have been received have been advised of the date and time of the
meeting and have also been advised that they may only address the meeting
at the invitation of the Sub-Committee.

(mY [a}
Page 2




16.

A licence must not be granted:

(a) to a person under the age of 18;

(b) to a person who is for the time being disqualified due to the person
having had a previous licence revoked in the area of the appropriate
authority within the last 12 months;

(c) to a person, other than a body corporate, who is not resident in an EEA
State or was not so resident throughout the period of six months immediately
preceding the date when the application was made; or

(d) to a body corporate which is not incorporated in an EEA State; or

(e) to a person who has, within a period of 12 months immediately preceding
the date when the application was made, been refused the grant or renewal
of a licence for the premises, vehicle, vessel or stall in respect of which the
application is made, unless the refusal has been reversed on appeal.

17.

A licence may be refused by the Sub-Committee where:

(a) the applicant is unsuitable to hold the licence by reason of having been
convicted of an offence or for any other reason;

(b) if the licence were to be granted, renewed or transferred the business to
which it relates would be managed by or carried on for the benefit of a person,
other than the applicant, who would be refused the grant, renewal or transfer
of such a licence if he made the application himself;

(c) the number of sex establishments, or of sex establishments of a particular
kind, in the relevant locality at the time the application is determined is equal
to or exceeds the number which the authority consider is appropriate for that
locality;
(d) that the grant or renewal of the licence would be inappropriate, having
regard—

(1) to the character of the relevant locality; or

(i) to the use to which any premises in the vicinity are put; or

(i) to the layout, character or condition of the premises, vehicle,

vessel or stall in respect of which the application is made.

18.

A decision to refuse a licence must be relevant to one of more of the above
grounds.

19.

It is considered advisable to merely deal with this application on its merits
and not to embark on an additional exercise of determining a precise
“relevant locality” and an appropriate number of establishments in it. Such an
exercise is only recommended if after having regard to the area generally if it
is felt that the number and / or proximity of premises may be inappropriate.

20.

SEV licences can be granted for a maximum of one year, or for such shorter
periods specified in the licence as the Sub-Committee may think fit.

21.

If the Sub-Committee determines to grant a licence it has power to impose
terms, conditions and restrictions on that licence, either in the form of
conditions specific to the individual premises concerned or standard
conditions applicable to all sex establishments, or particular types of sex
establishments.

Examples of the matters that standard conditions may address can include,
but are not restricted to:

e The hours of opening and closing

e Displays and advertisements on or in sex establishments

Page 3




e The visibility of the interior of a sex establishment to passers-by

¢ Any change of use from one kind of sex establishment to another.
If such standard conditions are introduced by the local authority, they will
apply to every licence granted, renewed or transferred by the authority
unless they have been expressly excluded or varied.

22.

Guidance issued by the Home Office (a copy of which is attached as
Appendix 9) states;

e In many cases licences granted under the Licensing Act 2003 to
existing operators will contain conditions that relate expressly and
exclusively to the provision of relevant entertainment. Such a
condition might prohibit contact between a performer and customer
during a lap dance. In these cases, in order to avoid duplication,
where conditions on premises licences or club premises certificates
relate only to the provision of relevant entertainment, they shall be
read as if they were deleted from the when the Local Government
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 came into effect after the third
appointed day.

¢ In cases where conditions on a premises licence or clubs premises
certificate are inconsistent with, and less onerous than, the conditions
in the licence granted under the 1982 Act they shall likewise be read
as though they have been deleted.

Where a local authority decides to grant a sex establishment licence to an
existing operator, who is subject to conditions on their existing premises
licence or club premises certificate that relate expressly to the provision of
relevant entertainment, they may wish to replicate the existing conditions on
the new sex establishment licence if they believe that the existing conditions
are sufficient. However, they could equally decide to impose new conditions
consistent with Schedule 3 if they believe that new or additional conditions
are necessary.

23.

A note of the procedure that the Sub-Committee has adopted for
consideration of applications of this kind is attached as Appendix 10.

24,

A copy of the Sex Establishment Licensing Policy is attached as Appendix
11.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Capital/Revenue

26. There are no financial implications.
Property/Other
27. Not applicable.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report:

28.

Paragraph 12 of Schedule 3 sets out the grounds for refusing an application

for the grant, renewal or transfer of a licence.

A licence must not be granted:

(a) to a person under the age of 18;

(b) to a person who is for the time being disqualified due to the person having
had a previous licence revoked in the area of the appropriate authority within the
last 12 months;

Page 4




(c) to a person, other than a body corporate, who is not resident in an EEA State
or was not so resident throughout the period of six months immediately
preceding the date when the application was made; or

(d) to a body corporate which is not incorporated in an EEA State; or

(e) to a person who has, within a period of 12 months immediately preceding the
date when the application was made, been refused the grant or renewal of a
licence for the premises, vehicle, vessel or stall in respect of which the
application is made, unless the refusal has been reversed on appeal.

29, If the Sub-Committee determines to grant a variation application, it has power to
impose terms, conditions and restrictions on that licence, either in the form of
conditions specific to the individual premises concerned or standard conditions
applicable to all sex establishments, or particular types of sex establishments.
Examples of the matters that standard conditions may address can include, but
are not restricted to:

The hours of opening and closing

Displays and advertisements on or in sex establishments

The visibility of the interior of a sex establishment to passers-by
Any change of use from one kind of sex establishment to another.

If such standard conditions are introduced by the local authority, they will apply
to every licence granted, renewed or transferred by the authority unless they
have been expressly excluded or varied.

Other Legal Implications:

30. CRIME AND DISORDER ACT 1998

Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 places the Council under a duty
to exercise its various functions with due regard to the likely effect of the
exercise of those functions on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to
prevent, crime and disorder in its area.

31. HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 1998

The Act requires UK legislation to be interpreted in a manner consistent with the
European Convention on Human Rights. It is unlawful for the Council to act in a
way that is incompatible (or fail to act in a way that is compatible) with the rights
protected by the Act. Any action undertaken by the Council that could have an
effect upon another person’s Human Rights must be taken having regard to the
principle of proportionality - the need to balance the rights of the individual with
the rights of the community as a whole. Any action taken by the Council which
affects another's rights must be no more onerous than is necessary in a
democratic society. The matter set out in this report must be considered in light of
the above obligations.

32. EQULITY ACT 2010

Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 requires the Council to have due regard
to the need to eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any
other conduct that is prohibited by or under this Act. It also requires the
Council to advance equality of opportunity and foster good relations between
persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do
not share it. This means having due regard to the need to removing or
minimising disadvantages suffered, taking steps to meet the needs of
persons, encouraging persons to participate in public life, tackling prejudice
and promoting understanding. The relevant protected characteristics are:
age; disability; gender reassignment; pregnancy and maternity; race; religion
or belief; sex; sexual orientation.

anao o

p
rage-o




33.

RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS

The risk is assessed as low. There are no finance or service delivery
implications. Failure to implement the appropriate conditions could impact on
reputational damage.

POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS

1. The decision to determine the application in the manner set out in this report is
not contrary to the council’s policy framework.

KEY DECISION? No

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED: N/A

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices

1. Application for the renewal of SEV licence made in respect of Playhouse,
Basement, 35 London Road, Southampton

2. A copy of the current Sexual Entertainment Venue licence.

3. A copy Licensing Act 2003 Premises Licence for Playhouse

4. Representation from local resident

5. Representation from local resident

6. Representation from local resident

7. Representation from local resident

8. Representation from local resident

9. Home Office Guidance

10. Sub-Committee Procedure Notes

11. Sex Establishment Licensing Policy

Documents In Members’ Rooms

1. None

Equality Impact Assessment

Do the implications/subject of the report require an Equality and Safety No

Impact Assessments (ESIA) to be carried out?

Privacy Impact Assessment

Do the implications/subject of the report require a Privacy Impact No

Assessment (PIA) to be carried out?

Other Background Documents

Equality Impact Assessment and Other Background documents available for
inspection at:

Title of Background Paper(s) Relevant Paragraph of the Access to

Information Procedure Rules / Schedule

Page 6




12A allowing document to be
Exempt/Confidential (if applicable)

None

Page 7




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

Appendi
Application for the Renewal of a
Sex Establishment Licence {delete as appropriate) ??Mﬂmf

Please read the following notes before completing this form

A All questions must be answered except where otherwise stated. If relevant questions are not
answered, the application form will rejected and returned to the applicant for amendment.

B Any person who, in connection with an application for the grant, renewal or transfer of a sex
establishment licence makes a false statement which he knows to be false in any material
respect or which he does not believe to be true is guilty of an offence and liable on summary
conviction to an unlimited fine.

C  If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases
ensure that your answers are inside the boxes and in black ink. Use additional sheets if
necessary.

D  When fully completed, a copy of this form, plans and other accompanying documents must
be sent to the Chief Officer of Police:

E-mail: licensing@hampshire.police.uk
Phone: 023 8047 8373

Post/in person.  Force Licensing Team, Hampshire Constabulary, Southampton Central Police,
Southern Road, Southampton SO15 1AN

E  Send this fully completed form, together with the fee, plans and accompanying documents to

the Council's Licensing Team at the address below.
Contacting the Licensing Team:
If you require further information, you may contact the Licensing Team as follows:

Email: licensing@southampton.gov.uk

Post; Licensing Team, Civic Centre, Southampton SO14 7LY
Phone: 023 8083 3002 (option 4)

In person: Licensing Team, Civic Centre, Southampton SO14 7LY
Payments

You must pay for your licence application before it can be accepted. We can accept payment by
debit or credit card, by cheque or in cash. Piease note that a subsequent failure of a cheque to
clear will invalidate your application and may give rise to a criminal offence.

Playhouse SOUTHAMPTON renewal 2022 Page dﬁage:iﬂe © Southampton City Council 202207



Application for a Sex Establishment Licence
I/We hereby apply for the RENEWAL of a Sex Establishment Licence under
the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions ) Act 1983 as follows:

1.

General information
(all applicants must complete this section)

What type of licence are you applying for?

A sex shop licence [] A sex cinema licence [_] A sexual entertainment venue licence? X
Are you applying as: (please tick):

An individual [] A registered company D{ A partnership []

Please state your trading name:

Playhouse Gentleman's Club

Is this application for: {please tick):

Grant of a new licence [] renewal [X) variation [] or transfer [] of an existing licence?
If renewal, variation or transfer, please provide the existing licence number:
2022/00148/19SEXE

THE APPLICANT

Application by an Individual N_ == Ly
{complete this section only if the application is by an individual)

Title (please tick):

e T mlen 1 RAine Me 1 Nthar [ ] Inlaacas etata)-
ol I W b g aso sWe,

......... - L cee—- - g g

Surname: Forenames:
Maiden name or any other surnames you have been known by:

Date of birth:

Residential address:
Posteode:;

Position/Role in the business:

Application by a Partnership
(complete this section only if the application is by a partnership)

You must supply information in respect of every partner — where there are more than two
partners then please use a continuation sheet

“Title (please tick):

Title (please tick):
Mr[] Mrs. [} Miss[_] Ms.[[] Other {please state):
Surmname: Forenames:

Maiden name or any other surnames you have been known by:

Date of birth:
Residential address:
Postocode:

Mr. ] Mrs. [ ] Miss (] Ms.[] Other[ ] (please state):
Surname: Forenames:

Maiden name or any other surnames you have been known by:

Date of birth:

Playhouse SOUTHAMPTON renewal 2022 Page tp;?i:dénfo © Southampton City Councit 202207




Residential address:
Postcode:

4. | Application by a Registered Company
{complete this section only if the application is by a registered company)

Registered company name: London Road Leisure Limited

Registration number: 13427653

Address of the company’s registered office: Unit 19 Mithcell Point Business Park Ensign Way
Hamble Southampton

Postcode: SO31 4RF

Please provide the following details for every director, shadow director and the company
secretary — where necessary please use a continuation sheet.

Role:

Title {please tick):

Mr. [] Mrs. (] Miss [] Ms. [] Other [ (please state):
Surname: Forenames:

Maiden name or any other sumames you have been known by:

Date of birth:
Residential address:
Postcode:

Role:
Title (please tick):

Mr. [] Mrs. [ ] Miss [ ] Ms. [] Other[] (please state):
Surname: Forenames:

Maiden name or any other surnames you have been known by:
Date of birth:

Residential address:

Postcode:

8. | Contact Details
(all applicants must complete this section)

We will use your business address to correspond with you unless you indicate we should use
your Residential address

Business Address: Telephone nos.

Unit 19 Mithceli Point Business Park Ensign Daytime:

Way Hamble Southampton Evening:

Postcode: SO31 4RF Mobile:

Residential address: Email address: ]
Website address:

Postcode: '

Please use my Residential address for correspondence Yes ] No X

if you have appointed a legai advisor or other agent to act for you, please give their details
and reference number here:

Name: Piers Warne
Address: TLT LLP, 1 Redcliff Street Bristol
Post code BS1 6TP

‘Phone number:
Email address:
Reference no.; PW03/118027/8

Playhouse SOUTHAMPTON renewal 2022  Page thid@gf@idsl © Southampton City Council 202207



Criminal Convictions
all applicants must complete this section)

Have you, any partners in the business, any directors of the company, or any other person
mentioned in this application, ever been convicted of an offence or been the subject of any
enforcement action in relation to a sex establishment?

Yes [] No[X (please tick)

If “yes” you must provide details for each conviction/enforcement action, the date of the
conviction/enforcement action, the name and location of the convicting court, offence of which
you were convicted/the nature of the enforcement action and the sentence/penalty imposed:

(where necessary please use a continuation sheet)

Have any of the applicants previously been refused a sex establishment licence "NO
or had such a ficence revoked? If so, give full details on a separate sheet

if the applicant is a company, is the applicant a wholly owned subsidiaryof ~ No
another company or corporate body? If so, give full details, including full names
and residential address of each director on a separate sheet

if the applicant is @ company, give the full names and residential addresses of X
each person who has a shareholding of more than 10% in the company on a
separate sheet

Will ihe business for which the sex establishment licence is soughi be cariedon~ No
for the benefit of any person other than the applicant?

If so, give fuil details on a separate sheet. include company names, registration

numbers, full names and residential address of each director or other person to

benefit: include all persons with shareholdings greater than 10%

11.

shop/sex cinemafsexual entertainment venue) on a separate sheet

Does the applicant operate any other sex estabiishments, whether licensed or Yes
not? If so, please state the name, address and type of sex establishment (sex

Playhouse SOUTHAMPTON ranewal 2022 Page pgg)énm ® Southampton Cilty Council 202207



THE PREMISES, VEHICLE, VESSEL OR STALL

12.

Is the application in respect of: a premises [ a vehicle [ ] a vessel [ ] a stall [ ]

If the application is in respect of a vehicle, vessel or stall, where is it proposed that it shall be
used?

13.

If the application is in respect of a premises, give the full postal address:
Basement, 35 London Road, Southampton
Postcode: SO15 2AD

14.

Is the whole of the premises to be used as a sex establishment?

Yes
If not, give a description of the use of the remainder of the premises:

The names of those responsible for managing the remainder of the premises:

15.

State the nature of the applicant’s interest in the premises, vehicle, vessel or stall (e.g.
freehold owner, lessee, sub-lessee etc.)

Lessese

16.

If the applicant has tenure of the premises other than as freeholder, state:

The name and address of the landlord: Glenmore Property Holdings Limited Kinetic Business
Centre, Thecbald Street London WD6 4PJ

The amount of the annual rental;

The length of the unexpired term 9 years

The length of notice required to terminate the tenancy No Notice to Quit provision

17.

What is the current use of the premises?
SEV Venue

18.

Is there planning permission for use of the premises, vehicle, vessel or stall as a sex
establishment? Yes
If yes, give the date of that permission 07/10/2020

18.

If there is no planning permission for use of the premises, vehicle, vessal or stall as a sex
establishment, give fuil details as to whether and why the use of the premises is a lawful use:

20.

Are the premises, vehicle, vessel or stall licensed now or intended to be licensed under any
other legiglation e.g. the Licensing Act 20037

Yes If so, give the nature and reference number of each licence:

2022/01003/01 SPRD- Premises licence (Licensing Act 2003)

21.

Is customer access to the premises, vehicle, vessel or stall:
Directly from the street?

Yes

From other premises? Yes

If from other premises, give full details below:

22,

Are all points of customer access to be supervised at all times that the premises are open for
business?
Yes

23.

Give full details of door control and supervision of access to the premises, including whether
those controlling access are licensed by the SIA:
As required by the current licence conditions and premises licence conditions.

Playhouse SOUTHAMPTON renewal 2022  Page R@@@ine3 © Southampton City Council 202207




24.

Give details of the measures proposed to ensure that any pérson entering the premises is
over 18 years of age, including what forms of ID will be accepted:

As required by the current licence conditions and premises licence conditions (mandatory and
other).

25.

Give full details of any proposed exterior signage, advertising, window displays etc. at the
premises - include photographs, illustrations etc.:

Photos provided

26.

Give full details of the measures to be taken to comply with the Indecent Displays (Control)
Act 1981, as amended, including the means by which persons outside the premises will be
prevented from seeing the interior:

As required by the current licence conditions and premises licence conditions.

27.

If the premises are to be used as a sexual entertainment venue, provide full details of:

(a)

the type and nature of the entertainment to be provided:
As permitted by the current licence

(b)

arrangements for the separation of performers and audience:
As required by the current licence and operating policies.

(c)

what contact, if any is to be permitted between performers and audience will be permitted:
As required by the current licence conditions and operating policies- no deliberate contact.

(A

whera sexial entartainment will take place {e.q. open areas. private booths or bothy: |
As set out in the plan appended to the current licences

(e)

performers and audience (e.g. security staff, CCTV, etc). Enclose copies of any codes of
conduct or similar documents and clearly indicate the sanctions which will be taken by the
management of the venue for any breaches of them:

As required by the current licence conditions, operating policies and codes of conduct
(attached)

What measures are in place to ensure compliance with the law by the business and persons
empioyed in the venue in whatever capacity, in particular in connection with human trafficking
and modern slavery?

As required by the current licence conditions and operating policies.

TYPE OF APPLICATION

28,

29,

Renewal

If the application is for renewsl of an existing licence, have there been any changes in the
business since the last grant of a licence?

No
If Yes, give full information here:

wt®

Variation - -
If variation of an existing licence is sought, give full detgﬂ,s»h‘efe:
o o

Ensure that you include plan other documents clearly showing what is proposed and
indicating whiph existingtiCence conditions it is proposed should be varied.

-

Transfer i

If the application is for transfer of an existing,lisentfé’,“égﬂyou enclose the signed consent of
the previous ficence holder to the transfer?
e

No e

Playhouse SOUTHAMPTON renewal 2022 Page @i i ©® Southaimpton City Council 202207
&4



31. | Other information in support of the application

Use this part of the application to set out any additional information which you wish the
licensing authority to take into account when considering the application:

Information provided in relaiton to the operation of the premises, outside of publicy available
licences, is comercially sensitive and not to be pubfished.

Playhouse SOUTHAMPTON renewal 2022  Page sePageénbd ® Southampton City Council 202207



MANAGEMENT
32. | Give details of the person who will be responsible for the day to day management of the
business (“the manager”):
Full name: Roland Roczei
Residential address:
Postcede:
Date of birth:
33. | Will the manager be based at the premises, vehicle, vessel or stall and will the management
of the business be that person’s sole and exclusive occupation? Yes
34. | Give details of the arrangements for the day to day management of the premises in the
absence of the manager: Chris Knight will have oversight of the premises should the manager
not be avialable. Address: -
include full names, residential addresses and dates of birth of such persons.
35. | On what days and at what times will the business will be open:
Day From | To Give details of any proposed exceptions to the
(use 24 hour clock) hours given
Monday | 19:00 05:00 ) -
B Tuesday 19:00 05:00
" | Wednesday | 19:00 05:00
i nursaay eIV VRV T
Friday 19:00 05:00
————l Saturday | 19:00 05:00 |
Sunday 19:00 05.00
36. || enciose detailed scale plans, colour photographs and designs illustrating the T
interior and exterior of the premises, vehicle, vessel or stail giving, in particular,
details of the proposals in respect of exterior signage and advertising, including ]
the nalure, conient and size of signage and any images to be used
(this will not be necessary in case of an application for transfer or renewal where
no changes have taken place since the last grant of a licence. . L
37. | Payment
{all applicants must complete this section)
| will pay the application fee for a sex establishment licence by:
Debit or credit card [ Cheque [ Cash [} (please tick)
38. | Checkiist —r )
(all applicants must complete this section)
The form is fully completed, signed and dated by each individual, partner or the 52
company secretary -
The fee is enclosed X
Continuation sheets, clearly marked lo indicate the question numbers, are enclosed
Plans and other documents are enclosed

Playhouse SOUTHAMPTON renewal 2022 Page eig?it ﬁfe nii% © Southampton City Council 202207



39, Declaration
_, (ol applicants must complete this section) -

- The information contiined in this famm is e and accurats 1o the best of our krowledge and
pabil Wa undarstand that if wo make a false statoment which we know to be fals 0 ey
MuilaTud st or which we do nol boliove 1o Do true in oconnedion wilh an applicaton for the
grant ol u sex establistimont hosnce we will be guilty of an offence snd hable on summary
conwction o an unlicnitod lioe

We understand that Southampion City Councill may consult other agenceus aboul our
suttatsity fo be granted & sex ontatiimhmoent kcence . and st those offer agoncx:s Moy
intiucde ottwr local authorites and the pokce

Wi undistang thal the purpose of the shanng of Dis dutl s to loth a bl sesossingnt of our
suinbilty lo be granted & ser ostablishmen! lcance | also understand thut the shanng of
adpemation about us tay eviend o sensitive porsonal data such s dala about any [ravious
crmitul ofpnons Same datalls will aleo be displaped in the coundll’s putils regmmter of
licontos

Wit undarstand Mt o heonsing authoily may be ivquirtd by Vtw 10 disciose from une 1o
tme harthir mforrmaton rlatng i applications and lconcis 1o e appropnate authartes 1o
e crposes of v wedoroament snd. the provarnbon of e

Mo detpsed miommahon atout the Caunct s hisnding of your personil ala G Do found
it prrency poboy. ivitindin onlivs (BRI Awwey soutHbmplin goe dkdpnivisy ) oF ran isjiead

A mdiodunt apghcant (srchon 2o wdl partnoes (Sechon 3) of Mo CoNgsy sacToly
{sacham 4 | sl comphfio Hhim aectxn
‘ . L § 'I'vr .
Suptresit TR P P 1 L
Lt
Ll feh emeeil
LM e y
LalLHnry f;_/r;" e e

Seegrund Chinkist 25/0;/26?2
Mo
1 [t ek CHI&STG"F’ffﬂ ’\’N/‘;'I”/'.-

¥ by it

SR IO DieecTroe

"3 P Lijatind
[P

Tisbryined iy

fodidn oy af

HEIT TN

b 10 LT L0
Faiisti

LY BT FR 1
=15 | PO

3t siat

Page 17




PLAYHOUSE GENTLEMEN'S CLUB:

35 37 London Road

Southampton

$015 2AD

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION REQUIRED
SEV RENEWAL 2022/2023

Directors Details- Each director with 10+% shareholding

» Glenn Nicie:
* Chris Knight:

Both directors hold a 50% shareholding in the company.
UIner premises operated witnin the company group
« Playhouse 32 St Mary Street Cardiff CF10 1AB

» For your Eyes Only 90 St Mary Street Cardiff CF10 1DW
« Fantasy Lounge 95-87 St Mary Street, Cardiff, CF10 1DX

Policies and Codes of Conduct Inciuded With this Renewal
Policies and codes of conduct are attached. These are not for publication as they

contain
commercially sensitive information.

Page 18



Agenda Iltem 6

Appendix 2

SOUTHAMPTON
CITYCOUNCIL

Licence Number | 2022/00148/19SEXE

SEX ESTABLISHMENT LICENCE

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1982, SECTION 2

SOUTHAMPTON CITY COUNCIL by virtue of the powers contained in section 2 and schedule 3 of the
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982, hereby grants to:

London Road Leisure Limited
of the following address:

Unit 19,

Mitchell Point Business Park,
Ensign Way,

Hamble,

Southampton,

Hampshire

S0O31 4RF

A licence to use the premises known as

Playhouse Gentlemens Club

and situate at

Basement
35 London Road
Southampton
S0O15 2AD

in the City of Southampton as a

SEXUAL ENTERTAINMENT VENUE

Page 19
Page 1 of 9




This licence has effect from 22nd day of March 2022 until

26th day of August 2022

The permitted hours of this licence:

Monday 19:00 - 05:00
Tuesday 19:00 - 05:00
Wednesday 19:00 - 05:00
Thursday 19:00 - 05:00
Friday 19:00 - 05:00
Saturday 19:00 - 05:00
Sunday 19:00 - 05:00

SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS:

1 Annex A

Standard Conditions applicable to Sex Establishments consisting of Sex Shops, Sex Cinemas or Sexual
Entertainment Venues

Southampton City Council, in exercise of the powers conferred by paragraph 13 of Schedule 3 to the
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 hereby make the following Regulations
prescribing standard conditions applicable to licences for sex establishments.

Interpretation

In these Regulations the following expressions that is to say "Sex Establishment”, "Sex Shop", "Sex
Cinema", "Sexual Entertainment Venue", "Sex Article", and "Vessel" shall have the meanings
respectively assigned by Schedule 3 of the Act (and where amended by Section 27 of the Policing and
Crime Act 2009).

In these Regulations the following expressions shall have the meanings hereby respectively assigned to
them namely:

"The Act" means the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982, as amended. "The
council" means Southampton City Council and/or any authorised officer acting on behalf of the Council.
"The premises" means any premises, vehicle, vessel or stall licensed under the Act.

"Licence holder" means a person who is the holder of a sex establishment licence.

"Permitted hours" means the hours during which the licensed premises are permitted to be open to the
public.

"Licence" means a licence granted pursuant to Schedule 3 of the Act.

Part One - General Conditions

1. Management of Premises

1.1. The Licence holder, or some responsible person nominated by him and approved in writing by the
council for the purpose of managing the sex establishment ("the manager"), shall have personal
responsibility for and be present on the premises at all times when the premises are open to the public.
1.2. In accordance with section 14 of the 1982 Act, the Licence holder shall display, on the licensed

Page 20
Page 2 of 9




premises in a conspicuous position, a copy of the licence and/or any special conditions attached.

1.3. The name of the person responsible for the management of the sex establishment, whether the
licence holder or manager, shall be displayed in a conspicuous position within the premises throughout
the period during which he is responsible for the conduct of the premises.

1.4. The licence holder shall retain control over all parts of the licensed premises as set out on the
approved premises plan and shall not let or part with possession of any part.

1.5. No person under the age of 18 shall be admitted to the premises and rigorous identity checks
SHALL be made on any person who appears to be under the age of 18.

1.6. To ensure compliance of 1.5 above, the licence holder shall exhibit appropriate warning notices as
to the minimum age requirements on both the exterior (frontage) door and also conspicuously on the
appropriate inner lobby door.

1.7. No person under the age of 18 shall be employed to work at the premises in any capacity or shall be
allowed to work at the premises on a self-employed basis.

1.8. Neither the Licence holder nor any employee or agent shall tout or solicit custom for the sex
establishment immediately outside or in the vicinity of the licensed premises.

1.9. Where the Licence holder is a body corporate or an unincorporated body, any change of director, or
other person responsible for the management of the body is to be notified in writing to the council within
14 days of any such change. In addition, the Licence holder shall provide any details as the council may
require in respect of any new director, officer or manager upon request in writing from the council.

2. Conduct of the Premises

2.1. No change from one type of sex establishment to another shall be made without the written consent
of the council.

2.2. No part of the premises shall be used by prostitutes for the purpose of solicitation or otherwise
exercising their calling.

3. Premises Interior and Layout

3.1. The premises layout shall comply with deposited plans unless otherwise approved in writing by the
council.

3.2. No alterations, additions or modifications to either the internal or external parts of the licensed
premises shall be made without the prior written consent of the council.

3.3. External doors shall be closed at all times other than when persons are entering or leaving the
premises or when SIA door staff are present at the door for the purpose of controlling entry and exit.
The external doors shall be fitted with a device to provide for their automatic closure and such devices
shall be maintained in good working order.

3.4. The premises shall be fitted with an inner entrance lobby door or partition screen so that no part of
the interior of the premises or any of the contents of the premises shall be visible when persons are
entering or leaving the premises.

3.5. No access shall be permitted through the premises to any other premises adjoining or adjacent
except in the case of emergency.

3.6. No part of the interior of the licensed premises shall be visible whatsoever to persons outside the
premises.

3.7. No external advertising, words, signs, displays or illuminations shall be permitted unless previously
approved by the council.

3.8. The external fabric, appearance and look of the licensed premises shall consist of materials and
colours approved by the council in order to:

o Ensure that the frontage is of a discreet nature

o Ensure that it is appropriate to the character of the locality.

4. CCTV

4.1. A recording CCTV system shall be installed and fully operational whilst the venue is open to the
public.

4.2. The recording equipment will be stored and operated in a secure environment with limited access, to
avoid damage, theft, unauthorised viewing and to maintain the integrity of the system.

4.3. A record will be kept of any access made to information held on the system.

4.4. The system will be serviced at twelve monthly intervals and maintained to a standard that is
acceptable to the police licensing department responsible for the area. A record of service and
maintenance completed shall be held for a minimum of three years at the premises.

4.5. The system clock will be checked regularly for accuracy taking account of GMT and BST.

Page 21
Page 3 of 9




4.6. An additional recording CCTV camera shall be installed and fully operational whilst the venue is
open to the public to cover the area outside the front of the premises.
4.7. The CCTV system will have sufficient storage capacity for 28 days of good evidential quality images.

5. CCTV Access

5.1. Police and authorised officers of the council shall have access to data from the systems quickly and
easily and therefore provision will be made for the licensee or a member of staff to have access to the
secure area and also be able to operate the equipment and to supply footage in a format which can be
easily viewed by police or council officers.

5.2. All operators will receive training from the installer when equipment is installed and this training will
be cascaded down to new members of staff.

5.3. An operator's manual will be available to assist in replaying and exporting data.

5.4. The premises shall not be operated pursuant to the grant of a licence until such time as the CCTV
System has been approved by the Police Licensing Department responsible for the area. The CCTV
must be maintained in a satisfactory working condition and subject to police approval in order to remain
operating under the licence.

6. General

6.1. The Licence holder shall take all reasonable precautions to ensure public safety on the premises
and shall comply with any reasonable request made by the council.

6.2. The council may substitute, delete, vary or amend these conditions at any time.

Part Two - Additional Conditions for Premises Operating as Sexual Entertainment Venues

7. External Appearance of the Premises and Public Displays of Information

7.1 The grant of a licence for a Sexual Entertainment Venue shall not be deemed to convey any
approval or consent which may be required under any enactment, byelaw, order or regulation other than
Schedule 3 of the Act.

7.2 The Premises shall be maintained in good repair and condition.

7.3 The Licensee shall ensure that the interior of the premises where sexual entertainment is offered
shall not be capable of being seen from the outside of the premises.

7.4 At no time shall performances be capable of being seen from outside of the premises

7.5 Alterations or additions either internal or external and whether permanent or temporary to the
structure, lighting or layout of the premises shall not be made except with the prior approval of the
Council.

7.6 The copy of the licence and of any Regulations required to be exhibited in accordance with
paragraph 14(1) of Schedule 3 of the Act shall be reproductions to the same scale as those issued by
the Council. The copy of the licence required to be displayed aforesaid shall be suitably protected and
the copy of any Regulations shall be retained in a clean and legible condition.

8. Control of Entry to the Premises

8.1 Any individual employed on the premises to conduct a security activity (within the meaning of section
paragraph 2(1) (a) of schedule 2 to the Private Security Industry Act 2001) must be licensed by the
Security Industry Authority (for so long as that Authority is operative).

8.2 The Licensee must ensure that a sufficient number of authorised door supervisors are employed in
the premises to check entrants; enforce the venue Drugs Policy, House Rules and Dancer Code of
Conduct; complete the incident book as necessary and supervise customers and performers whilst
sexual entertainment is provided.

8.3 No person under the age of 18 shall be admitted to the premises at any time that it is offering sexual
entertainment and a notice to this effect shall be clearly displayed at the entrance(s) to the premises.
8.4 The Licensee will operate a Challenge 25 Policy whereby prospective customers who appears to be
aged 25 or under will be refused admission unless they can prove that they are aged 18 or over by
producing suitable photographic identification. Prominent notices must be clearly displayed to this effect
at the entrance(s) to the premises.

8.5 Information shall be clearly displayed within the internal exit areas of the premises, reminding
departing customers to behave in a responsible and appropriate way towards all persons, particularly
women.

8.6 Prospective customers shall be informed of the House Rules.

Page 22
Page 4 of 9




9. Advertising

9.1 The Licensee shall not permit the display on the exterior of the premises of photographs or other
images, excluding trade marks or logos, which are unacceptable to the Council, and which may offend
public decency.

9.2 The Licensee shall have regard to the Advertising Standards Authority CAP Code.

9.3 Where the Council has given notice in writing to the Licensee objecting to any public advertisement
on the grounds that, if displayed, it would offend public decency or be likely to encourage or incite crime
and disorder that advertisement shall be removed or not be displayed.

10. CCTV

10.1 The Licensee shall ensure that CCTV is installed and maintained to the reasonable satisfaction of
the Police. The equipment will be password protected and have a constant and accurate time and date
generation.

10.2 CCTV shall be installed in any private performance areas. Such areas will also be specifically
monitored.

10.3 The recording system will be able to capture a minimum of 4 frames per second and CCTV images
shall be retained for a period of at least 28 days and made available to a police officer or authorised
Council officer (subject to the Data Protection legislation at the time). The said images shall be down
loaded on request and a copy provided to such an officer at the earliest practicable opportunity together
with any software required to enable playback.

10.4 Records must be made on a weekly basis and retained for at least one year to demonstrate that the
CCTV system is functioning correctly and that data is being securely retained. These will be made
available to a police officer or authorised Council officer on request.

10.5 In the event of a technical failure of the CCTV equipment the Licensee must report the failure to the
Southampton Police Licensing unit.

11. Performers

11.1 Performers shall be aged not less than 18 years. The Licensee must maintain records of the
names, addresses and dates of birth of performers including identity checks.

11.2 Performers must remain fully dressed in public areas and in all other areas except while performing.
11.3 No personal performances shall be given to customers seated at the bar or to standing customers.
11.4 Performers must re-dress when the performance has ended.

11.5 Performers must not perform a nude table dance unless in a supervised area and within sight of a
manager or floor supervisor.

11.6 Performers may not accept any telephone number, email address, address or contact information
from any customer, except in the form of a business card, which must be surrendered to the Licensee or
their representative before leaving the premises.

11.7 There shall be no intentional full body contact between customers and performers during a
performance except for the placing of money or tokens into the hand or garter of the performer at the
beginning or conclusion of the performance.

11.8 Performers will stop immediately and move away from any customer who is offensive or attempts to
touch them during a performance and shall report such behaviour and any other inappropriate behaviour
or breach of house rules to the management.

11.9 No performances shall include any sex act with any other performer, persons in the audience or
with the use of any object.

11.10 Performers must not engage with the customer in any act of, or communication likely to lead to an
act of, prostitution or solicitation.

11.11 The Licensee is to implement a policy for the safety of the performers when they leave the
premises.

12. Customers

12.1 Customers must remain seated during the entire performance of a private dance.

12.2 Customers must remain fully dressed at all times.

OR at the discretion of the Licensing Authority in individual circumstances the following conditions may
be applied:

12.3 The Challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises whereby any person
suspected of being under 25 years of age shall be required to produce identification proving they are
over 18 years of age. The only acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic
identification cards, such as a driving licence or passport;

Page 23
Page 5 of 9




12.4 The premises shall maintain a Refusals log whereby any occasion a person is refused entry shall
be recorded and available upon request by the Police or an authorised officer of the council. The
refusals log is to be maintained for 12 months.

12.5 Any person who appears to be drunk / intoxicated or under the influence of illegal drugs shall not be
permitted entrance to the premises.

12.6 A policy of random searches of persons entering the premises shall be operated.

12.7 Any person found to be in possession of illegal drugs upon entry shall be prevented entry and,
where possible, restrained until the Police can take such person into custody. Any persons found using
illegal drugs on the premises shall be removed from the premises or, where possible, restrained until the
Police can take such person into custody.

12.8 The licensed premises shall be so arranged by screening or obscuring windows, doors and other
openings so that the interior of the licensed premises shall not be visible to persons outside the building.
12.9 The premises shall subscribe to an approved radio system and radios shall be operational at all
times the premises is open to the public.

13. External Appearance of the Premises and Public Displays of Information

13.1 The exterior of the premises shall not contain any displays or depictions of the human form, or any
imagery that suggests or indicates relevant entertainment takes place at the premises, or other language
stating the nature of such activities, including use of the word "nude". The condition does not prevent
the use of the words "Licensed Sexual Entertainment Venue" on a single plate in characters no higher
than 10 cm at the entrance to the premises.

13.2 Any external displays or advertising may only be displayed with the prior approval of the Council.
13.3 The prices for entrance and any compulsory purchases within the venue shall be clearly displayed
on the exterior of the premises and/or within the front lobby in a location where it is clearly legible for
customers to read prior to seeking admission.

13.4 All charges for products and services shall be displayed in prominent areas within the premises,
and at each customer table and in the bar area.

13.5 Rules for customers shall be displayed in prominent areas within the premises, and at each
customer table and in the bar area.

13.6 No charge shall be applied unless the customer has been made aware of the tariff of charge by the
performer in advance of the performance.

13.7 Performers may not stand in any lobby, reception or foyer areas or outside the premises entrance
for the purposes of greeting customers or encouraging customers to enter the venue.

13.8 The use of cruising cars by the premises to solicit for custom and/or transport people to or from the
premises is prohibited.

13.9 The use of flyers and similar promotional material for the premises is prohibited.

14. Conduct of Performers and Rules relating to performances of sexual entertainment

14.1 There shall be a written code of conduct for performers that has been agreed in writing by the
Licence holder, the council and the Police.

14.2 All performers shall be required to certify their agreement to comply with the code and a record
shall be kept on the premises and be made available upon request by the Police or an authorised officer
of the council. The code shall include the basic criteria as set out in the Code of Conduct for Dancers
included within this policy.

14.3 No changes shall be made to the Dancer's Code of Conduct without the prior written consent of the
council and the Police.

14.4 The Dancer's Code of Conduct must include the following:

a. A statement that any dancer who does not comply with the Code of Conduct will face the possible loss
of shifts.

b. A statement that any dancer found to be in breach of the Code of Conduct could face immediate or
future loss of shifts.

c. Confirmation that any breaches of the Code of Conduct will be brought to the dancer's attention and
an opportunity given to respond to the allegations prior to loss of shifts or other actions being taken.

d. A statement that repeat or serious breaches of the Code of Conduct can result in suspension or loss
of shifts.

e. A statement setting out how shifts will be allocated.

f. A statement that there will be no financial penalties incurred by dancers as part of the warning
procedures.

14.5 All management and staff (including security staff) must be aware of and familiar with the content of

Page 24
Page 6 of 9




the Dancer's Code of Conduct and shall ensure it is complied with at all times.

14.6 A copy of the Dancer's Code of Conduct shall be prominently displayed in each area of the
premises where the public have access, which shall include toilet areas as well as in any area used as a
changing/dressing room for dancers.

15. Code of Conduct for Customers

15.1 There shall be a written Code of Conduct for Customers that has been agreed in writing by the
Licence holder, the council and the Police.

15.2 The code shall include the basic criteria as set out in the Code of Conduct for Customers included
within this policy.

15.3 The Code of Conduct for Customers shall be displayed in prominent positions throughout the
licensed premises so that it is visible to all patrons.

15.4 No changes shall be made to the Code of Conduct for Customers without the prior written consent
of the council and the Police.

15.5 The Code of Conduct shall include a statement that any customers who fail to comply with the Code
of Conduct will be required to leave the premises.

15.6 All management and staff (including security staff) must be aware of and familiar with the content of
the Code of Conduct for Customers and shall ensure it is complied with at all times.

15.7 On any occasion whereby a customer breaches the Code of Conduct, such details shall be
recorded in the incident log.

15.8 Any customer breaching the rules of the Code of Conduct shall be asked to leave the premises.
Any customer who has previously been asked to leave the premises and again breaches the Code of
Conduct shall be banned from the premises.

16. The Protection of Performers and the Prevention of Crime on the Premises

16.1 Performers shall be provided with secure and private changing facilities.

16.2 All entrances to private areas to which members of the public are not permitted access shall have
clear signage stating that access is restricted.

16.3 Any exterior smoking area for use by performers shall be kept secure and separate to any public
smoking area.

16.4 The Licence holder shall implement a written policy to ensure the safety of performers when leaving
the premises following any period of work.

16.5 Private booths must not be fully enclosed, however, use of flame retardant see-through curtain is
permitted. There must be a clear sight-line from outside the booth so that any performance of sexual
entertainment can be directly monitored.

16.6 There must be a minimum of one member of security staff present on any floor where a
performance of sexual entertainment is taking place.

17. Record Keeping and Management

17.1 All performers shall be required to provide valid identification prior to first employment at the
premises. Acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic identification cards, such as a
driving licence, passport or national ID card.

17.2 All performers and staff shall be eligible to work in the UK and proof of eligibility records shall be
kept on the premises. Management shall ensure that such records are regularly checked to ensure
compliance.

17.3 Records for each dancer dancing at the premises shall be kept for a minimum of 6 months following
their last recorded shift.

17.4 Accurate payment records shall be maintained and shall be made available upon request to the
police or an authorised officer of the council. All fees and charges for performer's shall be stated in
writing and displayed in the dancer changing room.

17.5 No films may be shown at the premises unless they have been passed by the British Board of Film
Classification. No films classified as R18 shall be shown on the premises.

18. Dress Code
18.1 The premises shall operate a dress code for customers to the satisfaction of the Police.

Sexual Entertainment Venues - Code of Conduct for Dancers
The Dancer's Code of Conduct shall include the following conditions as a minimum standard:
o There shall be no intentional physical contact between performers and customers at any time, before,

Page 25
Page 7 of 9




during or after the performance, with the exception of leading a customer by the hand to, or from, an
area permitted for performances of sexual entertainment in advance of, or following, a performance.

o The performer may not simulate any sexual act during a performance.

o Performers must not use any inappropriate, lewd, suggestive or sexually graphic language in any
public or performance areas of the premises.

o Performers must not touch the breasts or genitalia of another performer, at any time as part of a
performance.

o There shall be no use of sex articles (as defined by paragraph 4(3) of Schedule 3 of the Local
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982) at any time.

o There shall be no nudity by performers in public areas of the premises, unless the Council has agreed
in writing that area may be used for performances of sexual entertainment.

o Performers must fully dress (i.e. no nudity) at the end of each performance.

o Performances of sexual entertainment may only take place in designated areas of the premises as
agreed in writing by the Council.

o There shall be no photography permitted by customers save for the designated selfie wall approved by
council

o Customers must remain seated for the duration of a performance.

o Performers shall not arrange to meet, or have further contact with, customers outside of the premises.
o Dancers shall not perform if under the influence of alcohol or drugs.

o All dancers shall comply with this Code of Conduct. Failure to comply will result in the potential loss or
restriction of shifts in line with the Code of Conduct.

Sexual Entertainment Venues - Code of Conduct for Customers

The Customer's Code of Conduct shall include the following conditions as a minimum standard:

o Customers may not touch dancers during a performance.

o Customers may not make lewd or offensive comments to performers.

0 Customers must not harass or intimidate performers.

o Customers must not ask dancers to perform any sexual favour.

o Customers may not perform acts of masturbation or indulge in other sexual behaviour.

o Any customer failing to comply with this Code of Conduct will be asked to leave the premises and may
face a time-limited or permanent ban from attending the premises.

Dated this 23rd day of March 2022

Licensing Manager

Licensing — Southampton City Council
Civic Centre

Southampton

SO14 7LY

Page 26
Page 8 of 9




Annex 1 - Plans

NOTES

1. The contents of this drawing are copyright of Watts Holt.

3 duced
witten authority.

3. Donot scale. Figured dimensions only to be used.

ot

. discrepancies.

5. Ifin doubt please ask!

WATTS Il HOLT

KEY:

THE YARD W wwwwatisholt com
LOCH ROAD, POOLE T 01202 461586
DORSET, BH14 BEX E: hello@wattsholt.com
oo it T ]| M Y S T
A [ ‘Address Updated & Legend ] 110122 ] T
No. | Revision. | Date

Project
35-37 London Road, Southampton,
SO15 2AG.

Client/ Brand
London Road Leisure Ltd

»888000ea:

Drawing Title

PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR

PLAN @1:100 SEVL & Premises Licence
scale @ A3 1:100 checked .

London Road Leisure Ltd e Sept'21 drawm VT

35-37 London Road, Southampton, SO15 2AG. 21186 11A A

Plan not reproduced to scale.

Page 27
Page 9 of 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

Appendix 3
SOUTHAMPTON
CITYCOUNCIL
Schedule 12
Part A Regulation 33,34

Premises Licence

Premises licence number 2022/02884/01SPRD

Part 1 — Premises details

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description,

Playhouse Gentlemen's Club
Basement

35 London Road

Southampton

S0O15 2AD

Telephone number

Where the licence is time limited the dates

Not applicable

Licensable activities authorised by the licence

Live music

Recorded music

Performances of dance

Anything similar to live music, recorded music or performances of dance
Provision of late night refreshment

Supply by retail of alcohol

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities

Live music
Monday 10:00 - 04:30
Tuesday 10:00 -04:30
Wednesday 10:00 -04:30
Thursday 10:00 - 04:30
Friday 10:00 - 04:30
Saturday 10:00 -04:30
Sunday 10:00 - 04:30

Page 29

Part A - Playhouse Page one of nine



Recorded music

Monday 10:00
Tuesday 10:00
Wednesday 10:00
Thursday 10:00
Friday 10:00
Saturday 10:00
Sunday 10:00
Performances of dance
Monday 10:00
Tuesday 10:00
Wednesday 10:00
Thursday 10:00
Friday 10:00
Saturday 10:00
Sunday 10:00
Anything similar to live music,
Monday 10:00
Tuesday 10:00
Wednesday 10:00
Thursday 10:00
Friday 10:00
Saturday 10:00
Sunday 10:00
Provision of late night refreshment
Monday 23:00
Tuesday 23:00
Wednesday 23:00
Thursday 23:00
Friday 23:00
Saturday 23:00
Sunday 23:00
Supply by retail of alcohol
Monday 10:00
Tuesday 10:00
Wednesday 10:00
Thursday 10:00
Friday 10:00
Saturday 10:00
Sunday 10:00

- 04:30
- 04:30
- 04:30
- 04:30
- 04:30
- 04:30
- 04:30

- 04:30
- 04:30
- 04:30
- 04:30
- 04:30
- 04:30
- 04:30

recorded music or performances of dance
- 04:30
- 04:30
- 04:30
- 04:30
- 04:30
- 04:30
- 04:30

- 04:30
- 04:30
- 04:30
- 04:30
- 04:30
- 04:30
- 04:30

- 04:30
- 04:30
- 04:30
- 04:30
- 04:30
- 04:30
- 04:30

The opening hours of the premises

Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday

10:00
10:00
10:00
10:00
10:00
10:00
10:00

- 05:00
- 05:00
- 05:00
- 05:00
- 05:00
- 05:00
- 05:00

Part A - Playhouse

Page 30

Page two of nine




Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and / or off supplies

Alcohol is supplied for consumption both on and off the premises

Part 2

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of
premises licence

London Road Leisure Ltd.
Unit 19

Mitchell Point Business Park
Ensign Way

Hamble

SO31 4RF

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable)

13427653

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises
licence authorises for the supply of alcohol

John Garnet

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated
premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol

Licence Number: LN/201000165
Licensing Authority: Adur District Council

This premises licence is issued by Southampton City Council as licensing authority under part 3 of the
Licensing Act 2003 and regulations made thereunder

Dated this 1st day of September 2022;

Licensing Manager

Southampton & Eastleigh Licensing Partnership
Civic Centre

Southampton

SO14 7LY

Page 31

Part A - Playhouse Page three of nine



Annex 1 — Mandatory Conditions

1

No supply of alcohol shall be made under the premises licence:

(a) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises licence,
or

(b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor for the premises does not hold a personal
licence or his personal licence is suspended.

Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a person who
holds a personal licence.

(1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, arrange
or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.
(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following
activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or
supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises
(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or
encourage, individuals to
(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or
supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the
responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or
(i) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);
(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or
discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a
manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;
(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or
reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a
manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;
(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in
the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage
or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any
favourable manner;
(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where
that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability).

The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to customers
where it is reasonably available.

(1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age
verification policyis adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.
(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the
supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.
(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18
years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before
being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either—

(a) a holographic mark, or

(b) an ultraviolet feature.

The responsible person must ensure that

(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the
premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready for
sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the following
measures

(i) beer or cider: 2 pint;

(i) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and

(i) still wine in a glass: 125 ml;

(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is available
to customers on the premises; and

Page 32

Part A - Playhouse Page four of nine



(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to be
sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available.

1. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the
premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.
2. For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1 —
(a) ‘duty’ is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979;
(b) ‘permitted price’ is the price found by applying the formula —
P=D+(DxV)
where—
(i) P is the permitted price,
(i) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were
charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the
value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;
(c) ‘relevant person’ means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a
premises licence —
(i) the holder of the premises licence,
(i) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or
(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under
such a licence;
(d) ‘relevant person’ means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a
club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a
capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and
(e) ‘value added tax’ means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added
Tax Act 1994.
3. Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this
paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be
taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.
(1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2
on a day (‘the first day’) would be different from the permitted price on the next day (‘the second
day’) as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax.
(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol
which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day.

Where any condition of this licence requires that, at specified times, one or more individuals must
be at the premises to carry out a security activity, each such individual must be licensed by the
Security Industry Authority, unless the Private Security Industry Act 2001 does not require them
to be so licensed.

Annex 2 — Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule

1

SEASONAL VARIATION

An additional hour to all licensable activities to the standard and non-standard times on the day
when British Summertime commences.

On New Year's Eve licensable activities are permitted until the start of permitted hours the
following day.

HOURS

Permitted hours for licensable activities beyond 02:00 hours (00.30 on Sundays) shall only be
permissible when the premises are operating as a Sexual Entertainment Venue.

CHILDREN

Page 33

Part A - Playhouse Page five of nine



No persons under the age of 18 shall be allowed on the premises
Annex 3 — Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority

1 SECURITY REGISTER

The licence holder shall maintain a duty register giving details of each and every person employed in the
role of a security/door person and shall provide upon request by any Police Officer or Council Officer, the
following details:-

(a) The licence number, name, and residential address and telephone number of that person;

(b) The time at which he/she commenced that period of duty, with a signed acknowledgement by that
person;

(c) The time at which he/she finished the period of duty, with a signed acknowledgement by that person;
(d) Any times during the period of duty when he/she was not on duty;

(e) If that person is not employed directly by the licence holder or venue but via a security contractor
company, then details of this company must also be supplied (company name and out of office contact
details)

() The register shall be so kept that it can be readily inspected by an authorised officer of the Council or
Police Officer;

(g) The duty register shall comprise of a bound, consecutively page-numbered book and the licence
holder shall ensure that this register is kept in a secure environment in order to prevent unauthorised
access or alterations to same

2 RE-ENTRY

There shall be no admission or re-admission to the premises after 04:00 save for those persons who
stand directly outside the front of the venue to smoke.

3 CCTV

A colour recording CCTV system that captures images from the main public areas must be fully
operational whilst licensable activities are taking place. The system shall be able to cope with all levels of
illumination. The recording equipment shall be stored and operated in a secure environment with limited
access, to avoid damage, theft, unauthorised viewing and maintain the integrity of the system.

The system shall be serviced at twelve monthly intervals and maintained to a standard that is acceptable
to the police licensing department responsible for the area. The system clock shall be checked regularly
for accuracy taking account of GMT and BST.

Digital systems shall have sufficient storage capacity for 28 days evidential quality recordings (minimum
4 frames per second).

The images produced shall be date and time stamped. A notice shall be displayed at the entrance to the
premises advising that CCTV is in operation. An additional recording CCTV camera shall be installed
and fully operational whilst the venue is open to the public to cover the area immediately outside the
front of the premises.

It is important that the Police are able to access data from the systems quickly and easily and therefore
provision shall be made that at all times a person is in attendance who is nominated by the data
controller who has access to the secure area who is able to operate

the equipment. Ensure all operators receive training from the installer when equipment is installed and
that this'is cascaded down to new members of nominated staff. Have a simple operator's manual
available to assist in replaying and exporting data (particularly important with digital systems) and to
produce images to the police responsible authority for the purpose of the prevention and detection of
crime as long as the request is lawful and complies with the Data Protection Act.

In the event of a technical failure of the CCTV equipment, the premises licence holder or DPS shall notify
the police licensing department responsible for the area within 24 hours

4 REFUSALS BOOK

Page 34

Part A - Playhouse Page six of nine



A log shall be kept of all refusals including refusals to sell alcohol. The Premises Licence Holder shall
ensure that the refusals log is checked, signed, and dated on a weekly basis by the venue
manager/manageress.

The refusals log will be kept and maintained at the premises and will be available for inspection
immediately upon request by Hampshire Constabulary and any responsible authority.

The record of refusals will be retained for 12 months
5 ALCOHOL OFF SALES

Alcohol off sales are restricted to pre-purchased bottles no smaller than 70cl which have been resealed
by the premises.

6 STAFF TRAINING

Before commencing their duties all new staff must receive information and training concerning the sale of
age-restricted products.

This training must cover their legal responsibilities and action to be taken in the event of suspicions

being aroused that someone is purchasing or attempting to purchase an item under the legal age.

All employees will sign a letter to acknowledge that they have completed this training and have
understood their responsibilities on this area. This training should be reviewed and updated at
reasonable intervals but at least annually

7 INCIDENT BOOK
An incident book will be provided and maintained at the premises. It will remain on the premises at all
times and will be available to police for inspection upon request.

Any incidents that include physical altercation or disorder, physical ejection, injury, id seizure or drug
misuse will be recorded in the incident book. The entry is to include an account of the incident and the
identity of all person(s) involved (or descriptions of those involved if identity is not known).

Should there be any physical interaction by members of staff and the public the entry will include what
physical action occurred between each party.

The entry shall be timed, dated and signed by the author.

If the member of staff creating the entry has difficulties reading or writing then the entry may be written
by another staff member. This should however be read back to the person creating the entry and counter
signed by the person who wrote the entry. At the close of business on each day the incident book will be
checked by the manager on duty where any entries will be reviewed and signed. If incidents have
occurred the duty manager will de-brief door staff at the close of business. Should there be no incidents
then this will also be recorded at the close of business in the incident book.

This record will be retained for 12 months
8 CHALLENGE 25

There will be a Challenge 25 policy operating at the premises. Challenge 25 means that the holder of the
premises licence shall ensure that every individual, who visually appears to be under 25 years of age
and is seeking to purchase or be supplied with alcohol at the premises or from the premises, shall
produce identification proving that individual to be 18 years of age or older.

Acceptable identification for the purposes of age verification will include a photo card driving licence,
passport, Military ID or photographic identification bearing the "PASS" logo and the person's date of
birth.

If the person seeking alcohol is unable to produce acceptable means of identification, no sale or supply
of alcohol will be made to or for that person.

Page 35

Part A - Playhouse Page seven of nine



'Challenge 25' posters shall be displayed in prominent positions at the premises

9 BODYWORN VIDEO ( BWV)
From 22:00 hours at least one member of SIA staff who shall be positioned at the main entrance of the
venue shall wear a body worn video camera

Another member of SIA staff operating within the venue shall also wear a body worn video camera. The
equipment shall be maintained, and the images will be made available as soon as practicable, but at
least within 48 hours to the Police on request so long as the request is

lawful with regards to the Data Protection Legislation. The equipment shall record high-definition colour
images and be able to capture sound, specifically conversation. The equipment shall be able to operate
in all levels of illumination, images shall be time and date

stamped.

Where the equipment fails the Police Licensing Department responsible for the area shall be notified
immediately in writing or by email as soon as practicable and the defect remedied within 14 days of the
failure.

Data obtained on the body worn video camera shall be downloaded as soon as practicable and be
retained at the venue for at least 28 days.

10 SECURITY

From 22:00 hours until the closing time of the venue, a ratio of two front line door supervisor SIA-
registered security staff shall be employed at the venue for the first 100 persons and then 1:100
thereafter, e.g. 1-100 two door/security staff, 101-200 three door/security staff, 201-300 four
door/security staff and so on. This number is to include only front line door supervisor SIA staff employed
solely on the door supervisor/security duties, i.e. safety and security at the venue. All persons who are
frontline door supervisor SIA registered and whose position or role profile is solely security at the venue,
shall wear a fluorescent and/or a reflective orange tabard, clearly marked security at all times.

All front door refusals are to be recorded promptly, including the reason i.e. too intoxicated, barred
suspicion of drugs etc. If a person is ejected from the venue by a member of staff, a record must be
made of the incident including details of the staff members involved and a summary of the
circumstances. This must be completed as soon as practicable but prior to the end of that person's shift.

A nominated member of security shall be positioned at the entrance / exit doors and shall be responsible
for counting persons in and out of the venue. They shall use a device suitable for counting as approved
by the police licensing department responsible for the area. As

such, an accurate number of persons in the venue must be known at all times the venue is operating
under its premises licence. This number is to include staff.

At the terminal hour of operation, the licence holder shall ensure that adequate numbers of door
supervisors are employed to assist with the management of customers leaving the venue as well as
those remaining in the vicinity of the premises. 2 members of door staff are

to patrol the vicinity of the venue for 15 minutes after closing, to assist with safe dispersal from the area.
The door staff are to be identified by wearing high visibility tabards as used during normal door staff
duties.

Page 36
Part A - Playhouse Page eight of nine



Annex 4 — Plans

PROPOSEDN BASEMENT FLOOR FPLAN 2LI00

T MTACE MY BTG

London Road Leisure Ltd

CLOMK ROOM
FaT DESK

a1

&

NOTES

1. The contents of his drawing are copyright of Wats Hok.

2 Itmay ot be copled. recraduced or afiered In anyway witout the
writier antharty.

Do not scais. Figued dimensicns onfy 10 be Used.

-

Cmack dimansions on site batons work procesds, raport ary
tscrepancies.

]

FROFPOSED GROUMD

PLAN

@1:100

35-37 London Road, Southampton, SOI15 2AG.

Plan not reproduced to scale.

Part A - Playhouse

Page 37

Page nine of nine

FLOOR

T

= |
rTap—

= |

WATTS

THE YARD
LOGH ROAD. FOOLE
DORSET, BHid 35X

| HOLT

W WA WETISNO
T 01202 461556
E: helogwatshot.com

i el 1 | 1 11 1
A | Addregs Updated & Lagand | 1022 |u'r
No. | Rewision. | Da= | By
Project

35-37 London Road, Southampton,
5015 2AG.
Client/ Brand

Londen Road Leisure Lid

Drawing Title
SEVL & Premises Licence

scale @ A3 1:100 checked _

date Sept'21 drawn VT

21186 11A




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

Appendix 4
To whom it may concern,

| would like to express concerns for an application brought forward by London Road Leisure
Ltd, operating as Playhouse Gentleman’s Club, for the renewal of a Gentleman’s Club with
hours of operation from 19:00-05:00.

I would like to raise objection to this application and seek reduced operating times to 21:00-
02:00.

Table of Contents

1.0 PlANNING PEIrMISSION.........cvvereriirineniirienusissismniisssssssissssnsssssssssssssssssssssssnssssssssssssssssssns 1
2.0 Southampton City Council Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026. ..............cccceeveuure. 2
3.0 City Centre Ared Action PIAN (CCAAP) ..........eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeceeeeeiceeseeescesssenssesssnsssssssnssssens 2
L0 N 0 1 TR o[ o [ ok 2
N IR 7 ] 171 Lo N 3
APPCINAIX cveeneeeenrerrereerueernusereaereaneeresserssserensssssssessasesssssssnssessssessnsssssassssnsessnsssssnssssnssssnnnns 3

1.0 Planning Permission

Since the last Sexual Entertainment Venue licence application, the venue sought planning
permission for extending operating hours from 02:00AM to 05:00AM. This planning
application received a total of 27 objections, it is clearly evident that local residents are
strongly opposed to the application that has been brought forward.

A planning appeal was also submitted which was also dismissed by the planning
inspectorate with “the main issue is the effect of the proposal on the living conditions of
occupiers of nearby residential properties, with particular reference to noise and
disturbance.”

Copies of these documents have been included in the email submitted to my objection.

As long standing residents of the area we have experienced how the re-opening of licensed
premises since the easing of COVID-19 restrictions, has directly increased the amount of
noise, anti-social behaviour and public order offences within the area.

| had previously raised awareness to the city’s planning authority that the club was
operating outside of its granted planning times, operating as a lock in, where the doors
were closed and customers permitted to stay inside the premises illegally.

The venue continued to operate this illegal operation until the city’s planning authority put
a stop to this behaviour.

| believe that the licensing authority should reduce the operating hours until 02:00AM to fall
in line with that of the planning authority.

Page 39



2.0 Southampton City Council Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-
2026.

Quoting and referring to the Southampton City Council Statement of Licensing Policy 2021 —
2026.

Section 3.6

It is recommended that applicants obtain planning permission and building regulation
approval along with all other necessary permissions and licences for the premises prior to
an application being submitted. Having a licence to undertake an activity does not override
other legal requirements such as planning, for example a licence allowing the sale of alcohol
by retail and regulated entertainment until 2am does not override a planning requirement
to cease such activity by midnight.

Since planning permission has been restricted until 02:00AM, | believe that the licensing
authority should reduce the venues operating hours until 02:00AM to fall in line with that of
the granted planning permission.

3.0 City Centre Area Action Plan (CCAAP)

The extended opening hours that have previously been permitted on this site until 02:00,
are requesting to be extended until 05:00. This would be in complete disregard of the
current CCAP as set out by Southampton’s planning authority, it also gives rise to setting a
precedent in the area for permitted further late licences and other venues in the area to
apply to the licensing authority for extended opening hours.

(Appendix 1) cites the City Centre Action Plan section AP8.

4.0 Crime Statistics
Data from Hampshire Constabulary for the Bedford place area, from the period: September
2020 to August 2021.

Crimes in the area have seen a steady increase from September 2020, at 342 reported
crimes, to 446 crimes as at August 2021.

A breakdown of the crime descriptions lists 1536 of the crimes over the whole period being
attributed to violence and sexual offences. 967 offences related to anti-social behaviour and
public order offences. These are the specific crimes that are the core issue for ourselves as
local residents in the area. Anti-social behaviour and public order offences. These crimes can
be attributed to the existing licensed premises in the area. Current premises have operating
hours until 03:00. The proposed venue is seeking hours until 05:00. This will only provide a
venue for late night drinking, once other venues have closed. The company also encourages
groups through their stag package offerings for groups of up to 20. Once these patrons
leave the venue, it is very likely for them to roam around the locality upon their walk to local
hotels, causing further anti-social behaviour and public order offences in the area.
(Appendix 2) presents the data from Hampshire constabulary.

Page 40



Granting a licence application for operating hours until 05:00AM will only increase the level
of disturbance and noise within the area.

5.0 Summary

| do not have any moral objections to the club and its operations.

| am raising an objection to the use of the premises in this vicinity. Planning permission has
restricted operating hours until 02:00AM to protect residential amenity by Southampton
planning and the planning inspectorate.

I would like the licensing authority to restrict the venues license from 05:00AM to 02:00AM
in line with that of the planning authority and inspectorate.

| would like to thank the authority for hearing my objection and reasoning.

Yours faithfully,
(Please redact sensitive personal information for public documents)

Appendix

Appendix 1

Citing the CCAP from Southampton City Council policy AP8:

“Proposals for new development and extended opening hours will be subject to
restricted opening times. In evening zones and late night

hubs, extended opening hours for food and drink uses (Use Classes A3, A4 and
A5) will be supported subject to meeting other policies, particularly those to
protect residential amenity and retail areas. Applications for extended opening
hours in the Cultural Quarter will be judged on their own merits.

Elsewhere in the city centre proposals for extended opening hours outside the
designated late night hubs and evening zones will only be permitted where they
would not cause late night noise and disturbance to residents”

Appendix 2

Data from Hampshire Constabulary for the Bedford place area, from the period: September
2020 to August 2021.

Link: https://www.police.uk/pu/your-area/hampshire-constabulary/bevois/?tab=Statistics
(Figure 1)

Page 41


https://www.police.uk/pu/your-area/hampshire-constabulary/bevois/?tab=Statistics

Presents the number of crimes reported to
Last 12 months Last 3 years . .
Hampshire constabulary over the period.
Crime per Month As can be seen the area has seen a gradual

600 increase in the number of crimes reported in
the area.

400
200

0
Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug
2020 2020 2020 2020 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021

patestmonth ‘ st 1z menths ‘ pastayenns Figure 2, presents the crime types description. It is
s s o clearly evident that the majority of the crimes in
oo e the area are related to violence and sexual
Griminal damage and arson offences. This can be attributed to licensed
oy premises that operate in the Bedford place area.
o Anti-social behaviour and public order offences
et are the second and third most reported crimes in
Possassion of weapons the area. This can again be attributed to disorderly
ey behaviour from patrons leaving licensed premises
Theftfrom he persen ! o ... . inthearea, and causing disruption to local

residents, such as myself.

Page 42



21/01139/FUL/3820

SOUTHAMPTON
CITYCOUNCIL

DETERMINATION OF APPLICATION
TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990
Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015

lan Johnson

Luken Beck Ltd

30 Carlton Crescent
Southampton

S015 2EW

In pursuance of its powers under the above Act and Order, Southampton City Council as the Local Planning
Authority, hereby gives notice that the application described below has been determined. The decision is:

FULL APPLICATION - REFUSAL

Proposal: Change of use of basement nightclub (Sui generis use) and part of ground
floor cafe/restaurant to gentleman's club (Sui generis use) including extended
hours of operation to Sunday - Thursday, 21:00 - 05:00 and Friday and
Saturday 18:00 - 05.00

Site Address: Basement and part Ground Floor, 35 - 41 London Road, Southampton SO15
2AD
Application No: 21/01139/FUL

For the following reason(s):

01.Impact on Residential Amenity

The proposed opening hours would result in an extended late night use, which is situated in a location where
there are nearby residential properties. It is considered that the intensification of use into the early hours of
the morning would cause further detriment to the amenities of the nearby residential properties by reason of
noise and disturbance caused as patrons leaving the premises and dispersing into the surrounding area. The
proposal would be contrary to the particular provisions of the adopted City Centre Area Action Plan (CCAAP)
Policy AP8 which outlines acceptable limits on opening hours within the city centre. Furthermore this would
set a difficult precedent to defend against and could lead to further impacts within the locality to the further
detriment of the community. The proposal would thereby, having regard to similar appeal decisions in the
locality for hours of use beyond the midnight terminal hours, prove contrary to and conflict with 'saved'
policies SDP1, SDP16 and REI7 of the City of Southampton Local Plan Review (amended 2015) and Policy
AP8 of the CCAAP (adopted 2015).

Paul Barton
Interim Head of Planning & Economic Development

15 October 2021

For any further enquiries please contact:
Stuart Brooks

Page 43



PLANS AND INFORMATION CONSIDERED
This decision has been made in accordance with the submitted application details and supporting documents
and in respect of the following plans and drawings:

Drawing No: Version:  Description: Date Received: Status:

Location Plan 28.07.2021 Refused

Proposed Layout Floor Plan 28.07.2021 Refused
NOTES

If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the Local Planning Authority to refuse permission for the
proposed development, they may appeal to the Secretary of under Section 78 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990.

1. Appeals must be registered within six months of the date of this notice and be made using a form
which you can get from The Planning Inspectorate, Temple Quay House, 2 The Square, Temple Quay,
Bristol BS1 6PN (Tel: ) or do it online at

2. The Secretary of State can allow a longer period for giving notice of an appeal but will not normally be
prepared to use this power unless there are special circumstances which excuse the delay in giving
notice of appeal.

3. The Secretary of State need not consider an appeal if it seems to the Secretary of State that the local
planning authority could not have granted planning permission for the proposed development or could
not have granted it without the conditions they imposed, having regard to the statutory requirements, to
the provisions of any development order and to any directions given under a development order.

4. |If you intend to submit an appeal that you would like examined by inquiry then you must notify the Local
Planning Authority and Planning Inspectorate ( at least 10
days before submitting the appeal. Further details are on GOV.UK.

5. If permission to develop land is refused, whether by the Local Planning Authority or by the Secretary of
State, and the owner of the land claims that the land has become incapable of reasonable beneficial use
by the carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted, they may serve on the
Local Planning Authority a purchase notice requiring that the Authority purchase their interest in the land
in accordance with Part IV of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

6. In certain circumstances, a claim may be made against the Local Planning Authority for compensation,
where permission is refused by the Secretary of State on appeal or on a reference of the application to
him. The circumstances in which compensation is payable are set out in Section 114 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990.

7. For those developments which are covered by the Disability Discrimination Act, the attention of
developers is drawn to the relevant provisions of the Act and to the British Standard B300:2001 Design
of buildings and their approaches to meet the needs of disabled people code of practice.

8. The applicant is recommended to retain this form with the title deeds of the property.

Please address any correspondence in connection with this form quoting the application number to:

Development Management, Southampton City Council, Lower Ground Floor, Civic Centre,
Southampton, SO14 7LY

southampton.gov.uk Page 44

Bl @sotonce Y @southamptonce DX115710 SOUTHAMPTON 17



' The Planning Inspectorate

Appeal Decision

Site visit made on 14 June 2022

by R E Jones BSc (Hons) DipTP MRTPI

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State

Decision date: 13 July 2022

Appeal Ref: APP/D1780/W/22/3290972
35 London Road, Southampton SO15 2AD

The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
against a refusal to grant planning permission.

The appeal is made by Nightlife Clubs Ltd against the decision of Southampton City
Council.

The application Ref 21/01139/FUL, dated 28 July 2021, was refused by notice dated

15 October 2021.

The development proposed is change of use of basement nightclub (sui generis use)
and part of ground floor cafe/restaurant to Gentleman's Club (sui generis use) including
extended hours of operation to Sunday - Thursday, 21:00 - 05:00 and Friday and
Saturday 18:00 - 05.00.

Decision

1.

The appeal is dismissed.

Main Issue

2.

The main issue is the effect of the proposal on the living conditions of occupiers
of nearby residential properties, with particular reference to noise and
disturbance.

Reasons

3.

The appeal site is located within the Bedford Place/London Road district of the
city centre, a well-established vibrant night-time economy area. There are a
high concentration of bars, nightclubs and restaurants in the locality, while
residential properties exist on upper floors and along streets immediately
surrounding the district. Those residential streets closest to the appeal site
include, Bellevue Road, Carlton Crescent and Kings Park Road, all of which are
a short walk away.

The appeal building has operated as a nightclub (sui generis), and recently
planning permission! was issued to change its use to a Gendelman’s Club (sui
generis). This approved an operating time up to 02.00am, and whilst this did
not accord with the closing time prescribed in Policy AP8, the later opening
time was considered reasonable considering the fallback position established by
the nightclub’s operating hours. A separate entertainment licence? has been
issued by the Council for the premises to operate until 05.00am. This takes
effect for 1 year until 26" August 2022.

1 20/00367/FUL, granted planning permission 7™ October 2020
2 Sex Establishment Licence Ref Number 2021/02513/19SEXE

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate page 45


https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Appeal Decision APP/D1780/W/22/3290972

10.

11.

Policy AP8 of the Southampton City Council, City Centre Action Plan - Adopted
Version March 2015 (CCAP) sets out that proposals for extended opening hours
will be subject to restricted opening times as set out within Table 5. It states
that the latest opening time in this location should be restricted with planning
conditions to midnight, to reflect the proximity to nearby residential areas. This
is in order to restrict the potential nuisance caused by the night-time uses.

Furthermore, it is clear from paragraph 4.76 of the CCAP that Bedford
Place/London Road is an area already suffering due to the concentration of
licenced premises and activities. It sets out that longer opening hours are
unlikely to be permitted unless it can be demonstrated that the changes will
not have an adverse impact on the area.

In terms of the late night uses the policy aims to control, it is noted that
gentleman’s clubs are not referred to. Nonetheless, the appeal proposal would
be an entertainment venue where alcoholic drinks can be consumed on site. In
this regard it would be broadly similar in character to other late night uses
which the policy seeks to control. Accordingly, the provisions of Policy AP8 are
relevant, and I have assessed the appeal having regard to these.

The appellant has sought to demonstrate that there would be no adverse
impact from the extended opening hours until 05.00am. The previous nightclub
use, with a capacity of 400 patrons would be relinquished. The Gentleman'’s
Club would have a much-reduced capacity of 120 customers, while
management policies seek to gradually restrict admissions to the premises
from 100 patrons at 02.00am to 10-20 patrons by 05.00am (closing time).
Further proposals to reduce the intensity of the number of patrons leaving the
premises and dispersing into surrounding streets include a bespoke taxi
service.

These management procedures would contrast markedly with the previous
nightclub use and help manage the volume of patrons entering and leaving the
premises. However, the appellant can have little control over behaviour further
afield.

Groups of patrons arriving and leaving the club by foot, during the hours after
02.00am and dispersing through the surrounding residential streets would
likely be in high spirits, particularly following the consumption of alcohol. In
this context, instances of raised voices or shouting caused by patrons arriving
and leaving the premises would be very noticeable at times when the occupiers
of nearby residential properties are expecting peace and quiet to sleep.
Consequently, the proposal would result in greater disturbance to the living
conditions of neighbouring residential uses than the existing opening hours
would. This would be particularly harmful during warmer nights when
residential properties would be more likely to have their windows open.

The personal taxi service proposed by the appellant would allow patrons to
leave the premises quietly. Similarly other cab services such as Uber would
allow pick-ups from the premises to be timed to coincide with a pre-arranged
departure time. I acknowledge that these services would reduce the incidences
of patrons filtering into the adjacent residential streets. However, not every
patron would use these services, as some may choose to walk home, purchase
food nearby or source a taxi from elsewhere in the city centre. Therefore, I
attach limited weight to the proposed management procedures as a means of
curbing the harmful effects emanating from the proposed opening hours.

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate page 462


https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Appeal Decision APP/D1780/W/22/3290972

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

The appellant highlights that a separate licence has already been obtained to
operate the gentleman’s club until 05.00am. The Council’s statement of case
suggests that the assessment criteria for a licence differs and is focused more
on the running of the premises rather than the wider effects on amenity. That
said I note that the Council’s Licencing Manager indicates that his consideration
of the licence application, included impacts on nearby residents. Likewise, the
appellant indicates that the Police, the Council’s Environmental Health team,
ward member and some local residents have raised no objection to the
proposed opening hours.

Notwithstanding those different positions in addition to the case law referred to
by the appellant3, I have not been referred to the level of assessment that was
carried out in issuing the licence. For example, did those other consultees and
the Licencing Committee carry out a site visit of the outlying residential streets
and whether consideration was specifically given to the requirements of Policy
AP8. Given this lack of detail I am unable to give any significant weight to the
extant licence and those other representations that found in favour of the
application.

The appellant refers to other establishments in the vicinity, already operating
late opening times, well beyond the time specified in Policy AP8, highlighting a
failure of the policy. Moreover, the appeal site itself has historically operated as
a nightclub until 02.00am. Yet I have no specific details on whether most of
those uses (and associated operating hours) received planning consent or
whether Policy AP8 applied at the time. Moreover, there is no clear evidence,
notwithstanding the examples where there is a fallback, that demonstrates any
deviation by the Council from the policy approach set out within the
development plan. The appeal decisions? referred to also demonstrate that the
Council have been consistent in defending Policy AP8’s intentions.

The presence of late night uses close to the appeal site is accepted but they are
also highlighted as key contributors on the issues of noise, disturbance and
anti-social behaviour that have led to the approach described in Policy AP8.
Allowing later opening hours at the appeal premises would intensify the
number of people on the streets at unsociable hours. It is, therefore, sensible
to consider the cumulative impact of concentrated night-time uses and the
impacts of further intensification.

The appellant refers to a larger Gentleman’s Club it operates in Cardiff and
provides figures which demonstrate that its attendance by patrons reduced
significantly as the 04.00am closing time approached. Whilst those numbers
are low, even smaller groups or individuals leaving the appeal premises, could
display exuberant behaviour that would unacceptably disturb nearby residential
occupiers. I therefore give limited weight to that case.

I conclude, on the basis of the above reasons, that the proposal would have a
significant detrimental effect on the living conditions of occupiers of nearby
residential properties, with particular reference to noise and disturbance.
Consequently, the proposal would not accord with ‘saved’ Policies SDP1, SDP16
and REI7 of the City of Southampton Local Plan Review (amended 2015) and
Policy AP8 of the CCAP which, collectively, amongst other things, seek to

3 Applying Related Statutory Regimes in Planning Decision Making, Appendix 1, Appellant Statement of Case.
4 APP/D1780/W/19/3236020 (21 Lower Banister Street); APP/D1780/W/15/3003515 (25 London Road);
APP/D1780/A/14/2228297 (3 Winchester Street) and APP/D1780/W/20/3254263 (5 Canute Road)

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate page 47 3


https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Appeal Decision APP/D1780/W/22/3290972

ensure that development with extended opening hours into the early hours is
directed to the designated late night hubs in order to minimise disturbance to
nearby residential areas, and does not have an adverse impact on the
amenities of the citizens of the city by reason of noise and disturbance.

18. Although Policy REI7 refers to food and drink establishments exclusively within
Use Classes A3, A4 and A5, the appeal premises would encompass the
character of those uses insofar as being an entertainment establishment where
alcoholic drinks could be consumed. I have therefore referred to this policy in
my conclusion on the main issue.

Other Matters

19. The proposal would, provide an economic boost to the local area through
additional employment and attracting people to the locality. However, those
new jobs and the additional spending could still be generated up until the
current opening hours at the premises, and a significant increase in local
employment and trade, over and above the current situation, is unlikely.
Accordingly, this matter attracts only minor weight and would not overcome
the significant harm I have identified.

Conclusion

20. For the reasons given above, the proposal conflicts with the development plan
and there are no material considerations that outweigh that conflict. Therefore,
the appeal is dismissed.

R ‘E Jones

INSPECTOR

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate page 484


https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

Agenda Iltem 6

Appendix 5
From:
To: Licensing
Subject: Objection to Renewal of SEV Licence at 35-41 London Road.
Date: 03 August 2022 13:14:48

The grant or renewal would be inappropriate, having regard — To the
character of the relevant locality; To the use to which any premises
in the vicinity are put; To the layout, character or condition of the
premises, vehicle, vessel or stall , in respect of which the application
is made.

Sex_Establishment_Policy 20130425
Page four of ten © 2013 Southampton City Council

Further to my research | wish to add details of more flats , next to 35-41
London Road, they are 43- 49 London Road, alongside the club.

The Planning numbers are 20/01447 PA2A 2 studios, 20/01425/PAC3 2
studios, 20/00444/PA56 6 studios,

18/02300/FUL I studio , 18/00559/0UT 10 Flats , 18/02300/FUL 1 Flat and
16/00924/FUL 37 Studios,

On the 18/05/2022 | observed building workmen going in and out of the
ground floor street door from London Road marked 43 and there were bells
at the side marked Flat 1-2-3-4-5.

The close proximity of such living quarters makes the club use as intended
until 05.00 is a valid reason for not regranting the licence or curtailing the
hours, although the properties at 43 are not yet occupied.

Since the first granting of the licence the road has become more residential,
flats next door to the club and three floors added to a block at the corner of
London Road and Bellevue Road and a block behind the club in Waterloo
Terrace.

The nearby area is proven to be overwhelmingly residential..

A perusal of the Southampton City Planning website gives all the details of
such buildings, past and present.

There are numbers 1-75 on the western side of the road and 2 - 72 between
Brunswick Place and Bellevue Road corner on the eastern side.

Some commercial premises take up more than one number and there are
only 29 on the odd number side and 22 on the even number side, a total of
around 51 commercial outlets.

Compared to the following number of residential units - 3 flats each at 11
London Road, 13, 15 and 15 A, 19 and 19 B,
3 flats at 23 A, 4 at 25A and 27A, 1 at 41, 4 flats at 41A, 4 flats at 51, , 9 flats

Page 49



at 59 -61, 5 flats at 63, 5 at 65 and 4 at 65A.

On the road opposite the club are 3 flats at 20, 6 flats at 24, 32 at 40-42 A,
6 flats at 62, 26 flats at 64, ( where three additional floors are being added
at the moment ), and 24 plus 3 flats at 70-72. London Road.

Behind the club, across an alley only about 5 metres from the fire door of
club is massive Mede House , Salisbury Street with 107 flats , next to it Kisar
House with 16 flats.

This appears to equate to around 302 residential units, above ,around,

opposite and behind the club .

There is a multi story car a park opposite Mede and Kisar where patron's car
movements and voices will cause sleep disturbance and the residents at the
block of flats in Waterloo Terrace will suffer similar detriment.

Southampton City Planning website gives details of the ratio of commercial
premises to residential in London Road, and behind the club in Salisbury Street.
There are just over 50 shops, cafes, bars, take ways. offices, estate agents
and a drop in centre for addicts.

There are about 300 flats, the largest blocks are at 40 - 42 London Road, 64
London Road and Mede House in Salisbury Street.

Also take note of:

Residential properties in the Carlton Place area.

Five houses and , 17 flats in block Carlton House, and about 5 above
shops, two blocks in Southampton Street, 24 flats at 16-18 Upper
Banister Street, and in Bedford Place 47 flats at Roebuck House and
about 10 above shops, 14 in Amoy Street, about 16 in new build
estate there and 42 in Canton Street.

The proportion of domestic properties near to the club make it an inappropriate
use in Licensing terms.

The details of most flats around the club can be verified by these Planning
Application numbers-

00/00438, 02//00476, 05/ 00174/FUL, 05/00457, 09/00260, 09/01207,
11/01166,11/00831,11/00410
12/00753,13/00960/,13/00587/13/00036,13/00979, 14/02106,
15/01547,15/00866, 15/00199,

16/00984, 16/00924, 18/01787, 19/01198, ( all FUL)

11/01532/REM, 13/00182/PA56/14/01455/PAC3, 14/00505/PA56 14/,
01027/PA576

This is by no means a complete list.

My continued objection is that the use of the club as requested in the Licence would cause
severe detriment to residential amenities in this tightly packed residential environment

Page 50



and that the location is unsuitable owing to the number of residents living near to the club
and in the nearby streets likely to be used by patrons going home.

Now that shops to residential is “permitted development “ more such shops and offices
will become housing and the ratio of residential to commercial will increase without it
being noticed , as described below.

We saw significant changes to the commercial use classes system in September 2020.
However, one of the most significant adjustments has been implemented without much
fanfare or publicity. It is the change that was put in force since 1 August 2021 permitting
development to convert shops into residential units; (Use class E to use class C3).

There has been a decline of the British high street in the last decade and more so recently
due to the impact of Covid-19 on the retail sector. Many establishments that had been
operating for decades have also had to close their doors due to the rise of e-commerce
businesses. The Government believe allowing an easy change from shop to residential
might repurpose England’s high street and shopping centres.

The legislation introduces a new permitted development right that allows shop to
residential conversions. In other words, the change of use from commercial, business and
service uses (Use Class E) to residential use (Use Class C3) in England. The new rules mean
that conversions from any of those uses, including retail, to residential will not require full
planning permission if certain conditions are met.

UNQUOTE.

Please inform me if this is acceptable before | do more research into local demographics
and add more comments later on.

Thanking you

Page 51



From:

To: Licensing
Subject: Objection to Licence Renewal Playhouse 35 -41 London Road
Date: 08 August 2022 11:23:02

The distance from the club to my home is 450 metres as the crow flies and the walk covers
or passes densely packed roads as shown by the postal address numbers.

Going on a southerly route | pass half of Harborough, numbered 1 -60, then Kenilworth 1
-25, Coventry 1-37, Devonshire 1 - 66, plus three blocks of flats. Henstead 2 -36 and 1-9,
plus four blocks of flats, Banister with four blocks of flats, Southampton Street 3 blocks,
Carlton Place 1- 38 with one block of flats.

If I chose to walk north to London Road | would pass by 1 -80 Wilton , about 30 houses in
Amoy Street and and 1-42 in Canton Street.

Distances from club to house and flats-- to houses 1 -8 Carlton Place 125 metres, ,
Roebuck flats in Lower Banister 140, behind club are Mede House and Kiser flats , their
front doors are 50 metres from club front door and the staff smoking area at the back of
club where workers can smoke and shout into their mobile phones is only about 6 metres
from the back wall of Mede house.

Also there are flats in Waterloo Terrace , near to the multi storey car park.

There are flats above shops at 21 - 75 London Road apart from a few rooms used for
storage.

In London Road flats on corner of Bellevue are only 110 metres distant and 30 flats at 70
London Road are 140 metres.

e Across road from club are flats above Tesco at 27 metres

Owing to Covid changes surrounding venues have people shouting and drinking at tables
on street, making early to bed impossible for suffering neighbours.

The earlier closing ones, give people only a two hour gap until night club Pop World turns
out, followed by Trilogy. After Trilogy there would have been a sleep gap until people
need to rise at about 7 or 8 a.m.

The low price for admission, advertised as £10 only , will mean many people will use
Playhouse and all through the night patrons will be coming in and out several times an
hour and any opportunity for sleep between the other venues' turn outs will be lost.
This means that a sex establishment , with such frequent comings and goings is not an
appropriate use in such a closely packed residential area.

There will be some photos to follow.

Page 52



ENTRY PRICE




FLATS AT 43 LONDON ROAD




ENTRY AT 43

FTYcIc A O«

YL
ececcce [
Y Y LLL
PP Fe
ePPeee
ePpPPeR
esrrre
eorree
epreeP
ecperP







MEDE/HOUSE DISTANCESO'METRES



] ~ . ¥ -
~ ABOVE TESCO OPPOSITE 27 METRES






ABOVE 43 LONDON ROA




1-8 CARLTON PLACE 125 METRES DISTANCE






From:

Sent: 09 August 2022 13:29

To: Licensing

Subject: Obijection to Licence renewal at 35-41 London Road

Attachments: 21_01139_FUL-REFULZ_-_REFUSAL_OF_FUL-1583062.pdf; 21_01139_FUL-APPEAL_DECISION-

35-41 London Road (1).pdf

Please inform me if you are unable to accept and print out the two attached documents giving back up details and
evidence to my objection.
If they are not admissible, then | can type out relevant points in a letter.

Page 63



21/01139/FUL/3820

.

SOUTHAMPTON
CITYCOUNCIL

DETERMINATION OF APPLICATION
TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990
Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015

lan Johnson

Luken Beck Ltd

30 Carlton Crescent
Southampton

S015 2EW

In pursuance of its powers under the above Act and Order, Southampton City Council as the Local Planning
Authority, hereby gives notice that the application described below has been determined. The decision is:

FULL APPLICATION - REFUSAL

Proposal: Change of use of basement nightclub (Sui generis use) and part of ground
floor cafe/restaurant to gentleman's club (Sui generis use) including extended
hours of operation to Sunday - Thursday, 21:00 - 05:00 and Friday and
Saturday 18:00 - 05.00

Site Address: Basement and part Ground Floor, 35 - 41 London Road, Southampton SO15
2AD
Application No: 21/01139/FUL

For the following reason(s):

01.Impact on Residential Amenity

The proposed opening hours would result in an extended late night use, which is situated in a location where
there are nearby residential properties. It is considered that the intensification of use into the early hours of
the morning would cause further detriment to the amenities of the nearby residential properties by reason of
noise and disturbance caused as patrons leaving the premises and dispersing into the surrounding area. The
proposal would be contrary to the particular provisions of the adopted City Centre Area Action Plan (CCAAP)
Policy AP8 which outlines acceptable limits on opening hours within the city centre. Furthermore this would
set a difficult precedent to defend against and could lead to further impacts within the locality to the further
detriment of the community. The proposal would thereby, having regard to similar appeal decisions in the
locality for hours of use beyond the midnight terminal hours, prove contrary to and conflict with 'saved'
policies SDP1, SDP16 and REI7 of the City of Southampton Local Plan Review (amended 2015) and Policy
AP8 of the CCAAP (adopted 2015).

Paul Barton
Interim Head of Planning & Economic Development

15 October 2021

For any further enquiries please contact:
Stuart Brooks

Page 64



PLANS AND INFORMATION CONSIDERED
This decision has been made in accordance with the submitted application details and supporting documents
and in respect of the following plans and drawings:

Drawing No: Version:  Description: Date Received: Status:

Location Plan 28.07.2021 Refused

Proposed Layout Floor Plan 28.07.2021 Refused
NOTES

If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the Local Planning Authority to refuse permission for the
proposed development, they may appeal to the Secretary of under Section 78 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990.

1. Appeals must be registered within six months of the date of this notice and be made using a form
which you can get from The Planning Inspectorate, Temple Quay House, 2 The Square, Temple Quay,
Bristol BS1 6PN (Tel: ordo it online a

2. The Secretary of State can allow a longer period for giving notice of an appeal but will not normally be
prepared to use this power unless there are special circumstances which excuse the delay in giving
notice of appeal.

3. The Secretary of State need not consider an appeal if it seems to the Secretary of State that the local
planning authority could not have granted planning permission for the proposed development or could
not have granted it without the conditions they imposed, having regard to the statutory requirements, to
the provisions of any development order and to any directions given under a development order.

4. If you intend to submit an appeal that you would like examined by inquiry then you must notify the Local
Planning Authority and Planning Inspectorate at least 10
days before submitting the appeal. Further details are on GOV.UK.

5. If permission to develop land is refused, whether by the Local Planning Authority or by the Secretary of
State, and the owner of the land claims that the land has become incapable of reasonable beneficial use
by the carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted, they may serve on the
Local Planning Authority a purchase notice requiring that the Authority purchase their interest in the land
in accordance with Part IV of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

6. In certain circumstances, a claim may be made against the Local Planning Authority for compensation,
where permission is refused by the Secretary of State on appeal or on a reference of the application to
him. The circumstances in which compensation is payable are set out in Section 114 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990.

7. For those developments which are covered by the Disability Discrimination Act, the attention of
developers is drawn to the relevant provisions of the Act and to the British Standard B300:2001 Design
of buildings and their approaches to meet the needs of disabled people code of practice.

8. The applicant is recommended to retain this form with the title deeds of the property.

Please address any correspondence in connection with this form quoting the application number to:

Development Management, Southampton City Council, Lower Ground Floor, Civic Centre,
Southampton, SO14 7LY

southampton.gov.uk Page 65

Bl @sotonce Y @southamptonce DX115710 SOUTHAMPTON 17



Appeal Decision

Site visit made on 14 June 2022
by R E Jones BSc (Hons) DipTP MRTPI

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State

Decision date: 13 July 2022

Appeal Ref: APP/D1780/W/22/3290972
35 London Road, Southampton SO15 2AD

e The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
against a refusal to grant planning permission.

e The appeal is made by Nightlife Clubs Ltd against the decision of Southampton City
Council.

e The application Ref 21/01139/FUL, dated 28 July 2021, was refused by notice dated
15 October 2021.

e The development proposed is change of use of basement nightclub (sui generis use)
and part of ground floor cafe/restaurant to Gentleman's Club (sui generis use) including
extended hours of operation to Sunday - Thursday, 21:00 - 05:00 and Friday and
Saturday 18:00 - 05.00.

Decision
1. The appeal is dismissed.
Main Issue

2. The main issue is the effect of the proposal on the living conditions of occupiers
of nearby residential properties, with particular reference to noise and
disturbance.

Reasons

3. The appeal site is located within the Bedford Place/London Road district of the
city centre, a well-established vibrant night-time economy area. There are a
high concentration of bars, nightclubs and restaurants in the locality, while
residential properties exist on upper floors and along streets immediately
surrounding the district. Those residential streets closest to the appeal site
include, Bellevue Road, Carlton Crescent and Kings Park Road, all of which are
a short walk away.

4. The appeal building has operated as a nightclub (sui generis), and recently
planning permission! was issued to change its use to a Gendelman’s Club (sui
generis). This approved an operating time up to 02.00am, and whilst this did
not accord with the closing time prescribed in Policy AP8, the later opening
time was considered reasonable considering the fallback position established by
the nightclub’s operating hours. A separate entertainment licence? has been
issued by the Council for the premises to operate until 05.00am. This takes
effect for 1 year until 26" August 2022.

1 20/00367/FUL, granted planning permission 7™ October 2020
2 Sex Establishment Licence Ref Number 2021/02513/19SEXE

Page 66



Appeal Decision APP/D1780/W/22/3290972

10.

11.

Policy AP8 of the Southampton City Council, City Centre Action Plan - Adopted
Version March 2015 (CCAP) sets out that proposals for extended opening hours
will be subject to restricted opening times as set out within Table 5. It states
that the latest opening time in this location should be restricted with planning
conditions to midnight, to reflect the proximity to nearby residential areas. This
is in order to restrict the potential nuisance caused by the night-time uses.

Furthermore, it is clear from paragraph 4.76 of the CCAP that Bedford
Place/London Road is an area already suffering due to the concentration of
licenced premises and activities. It sets out that longer opening hours are
unlikely to be permitted unless it can be demonstrated that the changes will
not have an adverse impact on the area.

In terms of the late night uses the policy aims to control, it is noted that
gentleman’s clubs are not referred to. Nonetheless, the appeal proposal would
be an entertainment venue where alcoholic drinks can be consumed on site. In
this regard it would be broadly similar in character to other late night uses
which the policy seeks to control. Accordingly, the provisions of Policy AP8 are
relevant, and I have assessed the appeal having regard to these.

The appellant has sought to demonstrate that there would be no adverse
impact from the extended opening hours until 05.00am. The previous nightclub
use, with a capacity of 400 patrons would be relinquished. The Gentleman'’s
Club would have a much-reduced capacity of 120 customers, while
management policies seek to gradually restrict admissions to the premises
from 100 patrons at 02.00am to 10-20 patrons by 05.00am (closing time).
Further proposals to reduce the intensity of the number of patrons leaving the
premises and dispersing into surrounding streets include a bespoke taxi
service.

These management procedures would contrast markedly with the previous
nightclub use and help manage the volume of patrons entering and leaving the
premises. However, the appellant can have little control over behaviour further
afield.

Groups of patrons arriving and leaving the club by foot, during the hours after
02.00am and dispersing through the surrounding residential streets would
likely be in high spirits, particularly following the consumption of alcohol. In
this context, instances of raised voices or shouting caused by patrons arriving
and leaving the premises would be very noticeable at times when the occupiers
of nearby residential properties are expecting peace and quiet to sleep.
Consequently, the proposal would result in greater disturbance to the living
conditions of neighbouring residential uses than the existing opening hours
would. This would be particularly harmful during warmer nights when
residential properties would be more likely to have their windows open.

The personal taxi service proposed by the appellant would allow patrons to
leave the premises quietly. Similarly other cab services such as Uber would
allow pick-ups from the premises to be timed to coincide with a pre-arranged
departure time. I acknowledge that these services would reduce the incidences
of patrons filtering into the adjacent residential streets. However, not every
patron would use these services, as some may choose to walk home, purchase
food nearby or source a taxi from elsewhere in the city centre. Therefore, I
attach limited weight to the proposed management procedures as a means of
curbing the harmful effects emanating from the proposed opening hours.

Page 67 2



Appeal Decision APP/D1780/W/22/3290972

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

The appellant highlights that a separate licence has already been obtained to
operate the gentleman’s club until 05.00am. The Council’s statement of case
suggests that the assessment criteria for a licence differs and is focused more
on the running of the premises rather than the wider effects on amenity. That
said I note that the Council’s Licencing Manager indicates that his consideration
of the licence application, included impacts on nearby residents. Likewise, the
appellant indicates that the Police, the Council’s Environmental Health team,
ward member and some local residents have raised no objection to the
proposed opening hours.

Notwithstanding those different positions in addition to the case law referred to
by the appellant3, I have not been referred to the level of assessment that was
carried out in issuing the licence. For example, did those other consultees and
the Licencing Committee carry out a site visit of the outlying residential streets
and whether consideration was specifically given to the requirements of Policy
AP8. Given this lack of detail I am unable to give any significant weight to the
extant licence and those other representations that found in favour of the
application.

The appellant refers to other establishments in the vicinity, already operating
late opening times, well beyond the time specified in Policy AP8, highlighting a
failure of the policy. Moreover, the appeal site itself has historically operated as
a nightclub until 02.00am. Yet I have no specific details on whether most of
those uses (and associated operating hours) received planning consent or
whether Policy AP8 applied at the time. Moreover, there is no clear evidence,
notwithstanding the examples where there is a fallback, that demonstrates any
deviation by the Council from the policy approach set out within the
development plan. The appeal decisions? referred to also demonstrate that the
Council have been consistent in defending Policy AP8’s intentions.

The presence of late night uses close to the appeal site is accepted but they are
also highlighted as key contributors on the issues of noise, disturbance and
anti-social behaviour that have led to the approach described in Policy AP8.
Allowing later opening hours at the appeal premises would intensify the
number of people on the streets at unsociable hours. It is, therefore, sensible
to consider the cumulative impact of concentrated night-time uses and the
impacts of further intensification.

The appellant refers to a larger Gentleman’s Club it operates in Cardiff and
provides figures which demonstrate that its attendance by patrons reduced
significantly as the 04.00am closing time approached. Whilst those numbers
are low, even smaller groups or individuals leaving the appeal premises, could
display exuberant behaviour that would unacceptably disturb nearby residential
occupiers. I therefore give limited weight to that case.

I conclude, on the basis of the above reasons, that the proposal would have a
significant detrimental effect on the living conditions of occupiers of nearby
residential properties, with particular reference to noise and disturbance.
Consequently, the proposal would not accord with ‘saved’ Policies SDP1, SDP16
and REI7 of the City of Southampton Local Plan Review (amended 2015) and
Policy AP8 of the CCAP which, collectively, amongst other things, seek to

3 Applying Related Statutory Regimes in Planning Decision Making, Appendix 1, Appellant Statement of Case.
4 APP/D1780/W/19/3236020 (21 Lower Banister Street); APP/D1780/W/15/3003515 (25 London Road);
APP/D1780/A/14/2228297 (3 Winchester Street) and APP/D1780/W/20/3254263 (5 Canute Road)

Page 683



Appeal Decision APP/D1780/W/22/3290972

ensure that development with extended opening hours into the early hours is
directed to the designated late night hubs in order to minimise disturbance to
nearby residential areas, and does not have an adverse impact on the
amenities of the citizens of the city by reason of noise and disturbance.

18. Although Policy REI7 refers to food and drink establishments exclusively within
Use Classes A3, A4 and A5, the appeal premises would encompass the
character of those uses insofar as being an entertainment establishment where
alcoholic drinks could be consumed. I have therefore referred to this policy in
my conclusion on the main issue.

Other Matters

19. The proposal would, provide an economic boost to the local area through
additional employment and attracting people to the locality. However, those
new jobs and the additional spending could still be generated up until the
current opening hours at the premises, and a significant increase in local
employment and trade, over and above the current situation, is unlikely.
Accordingly, this matter attracts only minor weight and would not overcome
the significant harm I have identified.

Conclusion

20. For the reasons given above, the proposal conflicts with the development plan
and there are no material considerations that outweigh that conflict. Therefore,
the appeal is dismissed.

R ‘E Jones

INSPECTOR

Page 69 4



This page is intentionally left blank



pateAgendacitem 6

Appendix 6

RE: Playhouse Gentlemans Club Sexual Entertainment Venue License.
I would like to object to the renewal of this application.

I consider that the renewal of this license would be inappropriate having regard to the use
which any premises in the vicinity are put, this is a reasonable grounds for an objection and is
stated in Southampton City Councils Sex Establishment Licensing Policy (5.1. iv.)

I raise this objection as a local resident who lives in close proximity to the area, for years we
have suffered from the effects of the late night economy in the Bedford place area, myself
and my neighbours have challenged the operating hours for the gentlemans club at planning,
where over 25 people who live in the area had objected to the club, which was looking to
open until SAM.

With regard to residential amenity and the noise that this venue would create, Southampton
Councils planning department refused to allow this venue to operate beyond 2AM.

In section 5.6 of the councils sex establishment licensing policy, the policy refers to the use
of premises in the vicinity.

Quoting section 5.6.3

“When considering the type of uses which may be deemed to be inappropriate, due regard
will be given to the suitability of the proposed location of the premises and will take into
account relevant factors including, but not limited to, the presence of what may be regarded
as sensitive issues (e.g. dwellings, places of worship, schools, youth clubs, community
centres, women’s refuges, libraries, parks or swimming pools).”

The councils planning department have deemed that this gentlemans club would affect
residential amenity and extended operating hours were refused, this was also refused at
planning appeal which was broadcast in the local news.

I believe that the licensing department should reject the renewal or should reduce the
operating times of this license to fall in line with that accepted by the planning department.

As local residents of the area we have suffered greatly from the noise and disturbance created
in this area.

Crime, disorder and anti-social behaviour have greatly increased in the area since the easing
of COVID-19 restrictions and the reopening of nightclubs and bars.

I do not believe it is appropriate to have such a premises licensed in this area.

I do appreciate that this venue was previously operated as a nightclub, however this was only
licensed until 2AM, people would leave the area by 2.30AM. This new gentleman’s club has
been licensed until SAM and is inappropriate with regard to the location of the premises, this
is a residential area, and having a venue operating until SAM will cause noise and
disturbance in the area as well as increased crime and disorder, although the venue may claim
that they will not cause any trouble, it is likely that their customers will behave anti-socially
when leaving the venue, drunk.

I therefore raise an objection to this application and in my opinion it should not have its
license renewed or should be reduced to 2AM.

Kind Regards

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

Appendix 7

From:

Sent: 10 August 2022 20:13
To: Licensing

Subject: Objection

Hope you’re doing well.

I’'m writing in regards to the 35-41 London Road club request to extend their license to 5
am.

I hate to be that person, but I do have an objection. Namely, the noise is already extreme
but bearable, under the condition that the last few hours of the night (3/4 am onwards)
are peaceful and all the drunk and disorderly people are long gone by early morning
hours.

I feel that extending the working hours to 5 would leave me without a quiet minute in my
own home. I live at so I am directly above where the crowds mingle around
the clubs. Moreover, I would appreciate being able to walk out of my building at 5 am
and not be afraid, or having some drunk person eating McDonalds on my postbox (which
happens anyways but at least I don’t see it because it ends in the middle of the night).

I know this is a lengthy and a bit disorganised email and I do apologise for that, but I
would kindly ask you to take into consideration my concerns. Thank you in advance.

Kindest regards,

Page 73



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

Appendix 8

Southampton City Council
I would like to object to the application by Playhouse Gentlemans Club.

I am a local resident that lives directly opposite this club, I reside on
, This is above the Tesco Express store which is
directly opposite this club.

I have recognised the pink notice outside of the club and this email address was
on there, where I assume objections may be submitted.

I have listed my reasoning below
1. Crime and Anti-social behaviour

Crime in this area is rife, it is a regular occurrence, especially on
weekends for police vans and ambulances to be driving up and down
London Road in the early hours of the morning. I am regularly awoken by
the sounds of police sirens etc, I do not belive that this area is suitable
for a gentlemans club which will only further contribute to crime in the
area.

2. Noise and Disturbance
Following on from the above point is the issue of noise and disturbance,
drunk people in the area regularly scream and shout when leaving clubs
like this, I have personally witnessed people leaving this club and then
going on to scream and shout football chants in the street, it disturbs us
in the middle of the night.

3. Drug misuse
T would also like to raise that I have found drug cannisters which are
used in the consumption of nitrous oxide outside of this club, I think this
goes to show that the club may have an issue with drugs

4. Appropriateness of the club
It is my belief that this is not a suitable area for such a club, I have
witnessed half naked girls standing outside the front of the building
smoking cigarettes and vaping, although this does not happen every night,
I have seen it on several occasions. I do not think that this is appropriate
behaviour.

Page 75



From the points above I object to this clubs application to the council

Page 76



AYERTAItem 6

Appendix 9

Home Office

Sexual Entertainment Venues

Guidance for England and Wales

Page 77



Contents

Ministerial Foreword

1. Introduction

Definitions

Policing and Crime Act 2009
The Guidance

2. Policing and Crime Act 2009

Meaning of Sexual Entertainment Venue

Nudity

The Organiser

Spontaneous Entertainment

Premises that are not Sexual Entertainment Venues
Amendments to the Licensing Act 2003
Consultation with Local People

3. Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions Act) 1982
The Appropriate Authority

Committee or Sub-Committee

Adopting the Provisions

Requirement for a Sex Establishment Licence

Premises that are Deemed to be Sexual Entertainment Venues
Notices

Application Forms

Single Point of Contact

Fees

Objections

Hearings

Refusal of a Licence

Relevant Locality

Licence Conditions

Duration of Licences

Page 78

o o o1 o1

© © 00 00 N N

13
13
13
14
15
15
16
16
17
17
18
18
19
20
22
23



Appeals

Licensing Policies

Offences

Provisions Relating to Existing Premises
The Services Directive

4. Transitional Arrangements
Transitional Period
Existing Operators
New Applicants
Determining Application Received Before the 2nd Appointed Day
Determining Application Received After the 2nd Appointed Day
Outstanding Application
Existing Licence Conditions
ECHR Considerations
Changes to licensing policies
London
Sex Encounter Establishments
Hostess Bars

Soliciting for Custom

Annex A: Guide to Transitional Period and Existing Operators

Annex B: Guide to Transitional Period and New Applicants

Page 79

23
23
24
25
25

27
27
27
28
28
29
29
30
31
32
32
32
33
33

35

36



MINISTERIAL FOREWORD

In September 2008, the previous Home Secretary
announced the Government’s intention to give local people
greater say over the number and location of lap dancing
clubs in their area. This followed a consultation with local

authorities which highlighted concerns that existing
legislation did not give communities sufficient powers to control where lap

dancing clubs were established.

In order to address these concerns, section 27 of the Policing and Crime Act
2009 reclassifies lap dancing clubs as sexual entertainment venues and gives
local authorities in England and Wales the power to regulate such venues as
sex establishments under Schedule 3 to the Local Government

(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982.

These new measures, which take effect on 6th April 2010 in England and on
8th May in Wales, will, if adopted by local authorities, give local people a
greater say over where and how many lap dancing clubs open and operate in

their neighbourhoods.

These are important reforms to further empower local communities and the
purpose of this guidance is to provide advice to local authorities, operators,
local people and other interested parties on the new measures introduced by
section 27 and the associated secondary legislation.

Alan Campbell

(lac Gy bell

Parliamentary Under-Secretary of State for Crime Reduction

March 2010

Page 80 4



INTRODUCTION

Definitions

1.1  Inthis guidance —
The “2009 Act” means the Policing and Crime Act 2009
The “1982 Act” means the Local Government (Miscellaneous
Provisions) Act 1982
The “2003 Act” means the Licensing Act 2003
“Section 27" means section 27 of the Policing and Crime Act 2009
“Schedule 3" means Schedule 3 to the Local Government

(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982

Policing and Crime Act 2009

1.2  Section 27 introduces a new category of sex establishment called
‘sexual entertainment venue’, which will allow local authorities to

regulate lap dancing clubs and similar venues under Schedule 3.

1.3  Section 27 gives local authorities more powers to control the number
and location of lap dancing clubs and similar venues in their area.
These powers are not mandatory and will only apply where they are
adopted by local authorities. Where adopted, these provisions will allow
local authorities to refuse an application on potentially wider grounds
than is permitted under the 2003 Act and will give local people a
greater say over the regulation of lap dancing clubs and similar venues

in their area.
The Guidance
1.4  The guidance is provided for local authorities carrying out their

functions under Schedule 3, as amended by section 27. It will also be

of use to operators, the police and the general public.

Page 81 5



1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

Interpretation of the relevant primary and secondary legislation is
ultimately a matter for the courts. However, local authorities are
encouraged to have regard to the guidance when exercising their
functions (although there is no statutory requirement to do so) in order
to promote best practice and consistency across England and Wales.

The guidance is composed of 3 sections. Section 2 focuses on the
2009 Act and the definition of ‘sexual entertainment venue’. Section 3
provides an explanation of the meaning and effect of Schedule 3 to the
1982 Act and section 4 provides guidance on the transitional provisions
as set out in the transitional orders: The Policing and Crime Act 2009
(Commencement No.1 and Transitional and Saving
Provisions)(England) Order 2010 and the Policing and Crime Act 2009
(Consequential Provisions )(England) Order 2010 and any equivalent

orders made by Welsh Ministers in respect to Wales.

Apart from extending the scope of the 1982 Act to cover the licensing
of sexual entertainment venues and removing the sex encounter
establishment category in those local authority areas that adopt the
new provisions, the 2009 Act and the associated secondary legislation

makes only minor changes to the operation of Schedule 3.

Section 27 of, and Schedule 3 to, the 2009 Act come into force in
England on 6" April as does the Policing and Crime Act 2009
(Consequential Provisions) (England) Order 2010. In Wales, the
equivalent provisions come into force on 8" May 2010.

Page 82 6



POLICING AND CRIME ACT 2009

Meaning of Sexual Entertainment Venue

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

Paragraph 2A of Schedule 3 as inserted by section 27 sets out the
meaning of a ‘sexual entertainment venue’ and ‘relevant entertainment’
for the purposes of these provisions. A sexual entertainment venue is
defined as “any premises at which relevant entertainment is provided
before a live audience for the financial gain of the organiser or the

entertainer.”

The meaning of ‘relevant entertainment’ is “any live performance or live
display of nudity which is of such a nature that, ignoring financial gain,
it must reasonably be assumed to be provided solely or principally for
the purpose of sexually stimulating any member of an audience
(whether by verbal or other means).” An audience can consist of just
one person (e.g. where the entertainment takes place in private
booths).

While local authorities should judge each case on its merits, we would
expect that the definition of relevant entertainment would apply to the

following forms of entertainment as they are commonly understood:

e Lap dancing

e Pole dancing
e Table dancing
e Strip shows

e Peep shows

e Live sex shows

The above list is not exhaustive and, as the understanding of the exact
nature of these descriptions may vary, should only be treated as
indicative. Ultimately, decisions to licence premises as sexual
entertainment venues shall depend on the content of the entertainment

provided and not the name it is given.

Page 83 7



2.5

For the purposes of these provisions a premises includes any vessel,
vehicle or stall but does not include a private dwelling to which the

public are not admitted.

Nudity

2.6

2.7

It is important to note that although the definition of relevant
entertainment makes reference to a ‘live display of nudity’, the mere
fact that there is a display of nudity does not mean that a sex
establishment licence will necessarily be required. For example, if the
display forms part of a drama or dance performance in a theatre, in
most cases it cannot reasonably be assumed to be provided solely or
principally for the purpose of sexually stimulating any member of the

audience.

Paragraph 2A(14) of Schedule 3 sets out the definition of a ‘display of
nudity’. In the case of a woman, it means exposure of her nipples,
pubic area, genitals or anus and, in the case of a man; it means

exposure of his pubic area, genitals or anus.

The Organiser

2.8

2.9

The relevant entertainment must be provided for the financial gain of
the ‘organiser’ or ‘entertainer’. The ‘organiser’ means any person who
is responsible for the organisation or management of the relevant
entertainment or the premises at which the relevant entertainment is
provided. In most circumstances, this will refer to the manager of the
premises, but could also refer someone who is responsible for
organising the relevant entertainment on behalf of the persons

responsible for the management of the premises.

The ‘organiser’ must be someone who is in a position of responsibility
over the provision of the relevant entertainment and should not be
interpreted to mean a member of staff who is merely employed to work

during the provision of relevant entertainment. It is only necessary for
Page 84 8



one person to hold a sexual entertainment venue licence for premises,
even if there is more than one person who is responsible for the
organisation or management of the relevant entertainment or the

premises.

Spontaneous Entertainment

2.10 Where activities that would otherwise be considered to involve the
provision of relevant entertainment take place, but are not provided for
the financial gain of the organiser or entertainer, such as a
spontaneous display of nudity or a lap dance by a customer or guest,
the premises will not be considered a sexual entertainment venue by
virtue of those circumstances alone. This is because the relevant
entertainment must be provided for the financial gain of the organiser
or entertainer. However, it should be noted that an organiser may be
considered to have provided the entertainment where he has permitted
the activity to take place, whether expressly or impliedly.

Premises that are not sexual entertainment venues

2.11 Paragraph 2A(3) of Schedule 3 sets out those premises that are not

sexual entertainment venues. These are:

e sex shops and sex cinemas (which are separately defined in
Schedule 3 to the 1982 Act);

e premises which provide relevant entertainment on an infrequent
basis. These are defined as premises where-
a) no relevant entertainment has been provided on more than 11
occasions within a 12 month period;
b) no such occasion has begun within a period of one month
beginning with the end of the previous occasions; and
) no such occasion has lasted longer than 24 hours.

e other premises or types of performances or displays exempted by
an order of the Secretary of State.

2.12 Premises which provide relevant entertainment on an infrequent basis

will continue to be regulated under the 2003 Act, insofar as they are
Page 85 9



providing regulated entertainment under that Act, either by virtue of a
premises licence or club premises certificate issued under Part 3 or
Part 4 or a temporary events notice issued under Part 5 of that Act.
Any premises that provide relevant entertainment on more occasions,
more frequently or for a longer period of time than is permitted under
the exemption will be operating as a sexual entertainment venue and
will have committed an offence under Schedule 3 unless they hold a
sexual entertainment venue licence or the local authority has waived

the requirement for such a licence.

Amendments to the Licensing Act 2003

2.13

2.14

2.15

Schedule 7 to the 2009 Act amends the 2003 Act to ensure that
premises for which a sexual entertainment venue licence is required or
held (or for which the requirement has been waived under paragraph 7
of Schedule 3 to the 1982 Act) do not also require a premises licence,
club premises certificate or temporary events notice in order to provide
relevant entertainment. This is because such entertainment is
expressly excluded from the definition of regulated entertainment found
in the 2003 Act. However, if the premises also carry on other
licensable activities (e.g. the sale of alcohol or the provision of
regulated entertainment that is not relevant entertainment), they will
nevertheless continue to require a premises licence, club premises
certificate or temporary events notice under the 2003 Act for those

other activities, subject to any exceptions contained in that Act.

In practice, this will mean that the vast majority of lap dancing clubs
and similar venues will require both a sexual entertainment venue
licence for the provision of relevant entertainment and a premises
licence or club premises certificate for the sale of alcohol or provision
of other types of regulated entertainment not covered by the definition

of relevant entertainment.

Live music or the playing of recorded music which is integral to the
provision of relevant entertainment, such as lap dancing, for which a

sexual entertainment licence is required, is specifically excluded from
Page 86 10



2.16

the definition of regulated entertainment in the 2003 Act. Therefore, a
sexual entertainment venue will not require a premises licence or club
premises certificate just because it plays recorded music for a
performer to dance to. (Nor will providing entertainment facilities for the
purposes of the provision of relevant entertainment be regulated

entertainment under the 2003 Act).

Premises which fall under the exemption created for infrequent
entertainment do not require a sexual entertainment venue licence but
will instead need an appropriate authorisation under the 2003 Act, for
example, to cover the performance of dance. The exemption from
requirements of the 2003 Act for live music or the playing of recorded
music which is integral to relevant entertainment does not apply to

such venues.

Consultation with Local People

2.17

2.18

2.19

2.20

If a local authority has not made a resolution to adopt the provisions
introduced by section 27 within one year of it coming into force it must,
as soon as is reasonably practicable, consult local people about

whether they should make such a resolution.

The purpose of this duty is to ensure that local authorities consider the
views of local people where, for whatever reason, they have not

adopted the provisions.

This duty should be seen to be an extension to existing general duties
on local authorities to consult and involve local people when exercising

their functions.

The 2009 Act is not prescriptive about how local authorities should
consult with local people in order to comply with this duty. Local
authorities have extensive experience of engaging with local people
and will know what works best in their individual areas. Clearly, the
Secretary of State expects that any consultation exercise carried out

under this duty will be fair and meaningful. Local authorities should
Page 87 11



2.21

2.22

seek to make any relevant information available to local people in order
to inform their understanding and publish the outcomes of the

consultation on the internet.

In practice, local authorities may decide to consult local people on this
matter when they consult and involve local people on broader local
priorities and crime and disorder or anti-social behaviour priorities as
part of their work to develop Local Area Agreements/Local Delivery
Agreements and crime and disorder strategies, as required under
various existing duties, including, section 138 of the Local Government
and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 and regulation 12 of the
Crime and Disorder (Formulation and Implementation of Strategy)
Regulations 2007. This will ensure that consultations are not onerous
and form part of the ongoing engagement with local communities

undertaken by all local authorities.

For the purposes of this duty ‘local people’ are defined as anyone who

lives or works in the local authority area.

Page 88 12



SCHEDULE 3 TO THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT
(MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1982

The Appropriate Authority

3.1 The appropriate authority is responsible for determining applications for
sex establishment licences. For the purposes of the 1982 Act
'appropriate authority’ means the local authority which passed a
resolution under section 2 of that Act to adopt Schedule 3 in their area.
‘Local authority’ means—

(a) the council of a district (including a unitary County Council) or, in
Wales, the principal council®*;
(b) the council of a London borough; and

(c) the Common Council of the City of London.

Committee or Sub-Committee

3.2 Functions under Schedule 3 are the responsibility of the full council of
the appropriate authority, as defined above. Under section 101 of the
Local Government Act 1972, local authorities may arrange for the
discharge of these responsibilities by a committee or sub-committee of

the appropriate authority.

3.3  An authority may delegate its functions to those who sit on its licensing
committee set up to discharge licensing functions under the 2003 Act.
However, when dealing with an application for a sex establishment
licence, the members of the committee would not be acting as the
licensing committee under the 2003 Act and would instead be

exercising their functions under Schedule 3.

! See section 2 of the 1982 Act. Section 17 of the Local Government (Wales) Act 1994
provides that legislative references to district councils are to be interpreted as references to
principal councils in Wales. Unitary County Councils have all the functions and powers of
district councils.

Page 89 13



Adopting the Provisions

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

Section 27 comes into force on 6™ April 2010 in England and 8" May in
Wales?. On or following this date local authorities may resolve to adopt
Schedule 3 to the 1982 Act as amended by the 2009 Act so that it has

effect in their area.

Although many local authorities will have already adopted Schedule 3
to the 1982 Act for the licensing of sex shops and sex cinemas, a
further resolution is necessary before the provisions introduced by
Section 27 will have effect in the local authority area. However, where
a local authority has not resolved to adopt Schedule 3 to the 1982 Act
before the coming into force of Section 27, the amendments made to
Schedule 3 by section 27 will apply automatically if a resolution to
adopt Schedule 3 is made subsequently (see Schedule 3 to the 2009
Act).

The procedure for local authorities to adopt Schedule 3 as amended by
section 27 is set out is section 2 of the 1982 Act. Firstly, the local
authority must pass a resolution specifying that Schedule 3 or, in the
case of an authority where Schedule 3 is already in force, the
amendments made by section 27 to that Schedule, shall apply to their
area and the day on which it or they shall come into force in the area.
The specified day must be more than one month after the day on which

the resolution was passed.

The local authority shall publish notice that they have passed a
resolution under section 2 of the 1982 Act or (in cases where Schedule
3 is already in force but the local authority is adopting the amendments
made by section 27) paragraph 2(2) of Schedule 3 to the 2009 Act for
two consecutive weeks in a local newspaper that is circulated in their
area. The first publication shall not be later than 28 days before the day

specified in the resolution for the provisions to come into force in the

2 Section 27 (11) was brought into force on 2nd March 2010 but only for the purpose of
making the transitional orders.

Page 90 14



3.8

local authority’s area. The notice should state the general effect of
Schedule 3.

While there is no statutory duty to do so, prior to deciding whether to
pass a resolution, local authorities may, as a matter of good practice,
wish to seek the views of local people and businesses. The Secretary
of State also encourages local authorities to engage with known sexual
entertainment venues at the earliest possible opportunity once a
decision to adopt the provisions has been made, to ensure affected
businesses are aware of what action they will need to take in order to

comply with the new regime.

Requirement for a Sex Establishment Licence

3.9

3.10

Any person wishing to operate a sex establishment as defined by
Schedule 3 requires a sex establishment licence, unless the
requirement for a licence has been waived by the appropriate authority.

An applicant can apply for a waiver either as part of the application for
a licence or separately. The local authority can grant a waiver if they
consider that to require a licence would be unreasonable or
inappropriate. Where a waiver is granted the appropriate authority
should inform the applicant that a waiver has been granted. The waiver
may last for such a period that the appropriate authority think fit, but
can be terminated by the appropriate authority at any time with 28 days

notice.

Premises that are deemed to be Sexual Entertainment Venues

3.11

Paragraph 27A of Schedule 3 deems premises with licences to operate
as sexual entertainment venues to be sexual entertainment venues
whilst their licence remains in force, irrespective of how frequently they
are or have been providing relevant entertainment. This remains the
case even if premises operate within the exemption for infrequent

events.

Page 91 15



3.12

If an operator with a sexual entertainment venue licence is operating
within the exemption for infrequent events and no longer wants their
premises to be treated as a sexual entertainment venue (e.g. because
they are no longer operating as a lap dancing club) they may write to
the relevant local authority to request that their licence be cancelled.
Upon receiving such a request from a licence-holder a local authority

must cancel the licence in question.

Notices

3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

Applicants for a sex establishment licence must give public notice of
the application by publishing an advertisement in a local newspaper
that is circulated in the local authority area no later than 7 days after

the date the application is made.

Where the application relates to premises, a notice should also be
displayed on or near the premises in a place where it can be
conveniently read by members of the public. The notice should be
displayed for a period of 21 day beginning with the date the

applications was made.

All notices should be in the form prescribed by the appropriate authority
and identify the premises or, if the application relates to a vehicle,

vessel or stall, specify where it will be used as a sex establishment.

There are similar notification requirements for applications made under
the 2003 Act. Where an applicant is making an application under both
Schedule 3 and the 2003 Act at the same time they may wish to

combine these requirements where permitted.

Application Forms

3.17

Unlike the 2003 Act there is no prescribed application form for an
application made under Schedule 3 to the 1982 Act. However, the
application must be in writing and contain the details set out in

paragraph 10 of Schedule 3 along with such other details as the
Page 92 16



appropriate authority may reasonably require. Local authorities must
provide for applications to be made electronically and may produce and
publish recommended application forms for sex establishment licences

setting out all the details required.

Single Point of Contact

3.18

3.19

3.20

Fees

3.21

3.22

Following amendments to sub-paragraph 10(14) made by the Provision
of Services Regulations 2009, where an application for the grant,
renewal or transfer of a licence is made by means of a relevant
electronic facility it will be the responsibility of the appropriate authority
to send a copy of an application to the chief officer of police, not later
than 7 days after the date the application is received.

Where an application is made by any other means the responsibility to
send a copy of the application to the chief officer of police within 7 days
of the application being made will remain the responsibility of the
applicant.

For the purpose of Schedule 3 a relevant electronic facility means the
electronic assistance facility referred to in regulation 38 of the Provision
of Services Regulations 2009 or any facility established and maintained
by the appropriate authority for the purpose of receiving applications

under this Schedule electronically.

Schedule 3 to the 1982 Act states that an application for the grant,
renewal, variations or transfer of a sex establishment licence shall pay
a reasonable fee determined by the appropriate authorities, but does

not expand on what would be considered to be reasonable.

However, local authorities should have regard to the following
documents when determining their fee: The European Services

Page 93 17



Directive: Guidance for Local Authorities® and LACORS Guidance on
the impact of the Services Directive on councils setting and

administering local licence fees within the service sector.*

Objections

3.23

3.24

When considering an application for the grant, renewal or transfer of a
licence the appropriate authority should have regard to any
observations submitted to it by the chief officer of police and any
objections that they have received from anyone else within 28 of the
application. Any person can object to an application but the objection
should be relevant to the grounds set out in paragraph 12 for refusing a
licence. Objections should not be based on moral grounds/values® and
local authorities should not consider objections that are not relevant to
the grounds set out in paragraph 12. Objectors must give notice of their

objection in writing, stating the general terms of the objection.

Where the appropriate authority receives notice of any objection the
authority shall, before considering the application, give notice in writing
of the general terms of the objection to the applicant. However, the
appropriate authority shall not without the consent of the person

making the objection reveal their name or address to the applicant.

Hearings

3.25

3.26

Under paragraph 10(19) of Schedule 3, before refusing an application,
all applicants should be given the opportunity to appear before and be
heard by the local authority committee or sub-committee that is

responsible for determining the application.

Schedule 3 does not make explicit provision for objectors to be heard,
but this does not mean that such hearings cannot take place. Rather,

case law on this matter states that while local authorities are under no

3 http://www.berr.gov.uk/files/file50026.pdf

* www.lacors.gov.uk

®> R v Newcastle upon Tyne City Council ex parte The Christian Institute [2001] B.L.G.R. 165

Page 94 18


http://www.berr.gov.uk/files/file50026.pdf
http://www.lacors.gov.uk/

obligation to offer an oral hearing to objectors, they may do so at their
discretion. Although a local authority is under a duty to consider any
objections made within 28 days of the application, it has discretion to
hear later objections provided the applicant is given the opportunity to
deal with those objections.®

Refusal of a Licence

3.27

3.28

Paragraph 12 of Schedule 3 sets out the grounds for refusing an

application for the grant, renewal or transfer of a licence.

A licence must not be granted:

(@) to a person under the age of 18;

(b) to a person who is for the time being disqualified due to the
person having had a previous licence revoked in the area of the
appropriate authority within the last 12 months;

(c) to a person, other than a body corporate, who is not resident in an
EEA State or was not so resident throughout the period of six
months immediately preceding the date when the application was
made; or

(d) to abody corporate which is not incorporated in an EEA State; or

(e) to aperson who has, within a period of 12 months immediately
preceding the date when the application was made, been refused
the grant or renewal of a licence for the premises, vehicle, vessel
or stall in respect of which the application is made, unless the

refusal has been reversed on appeal.

A licence may be refused where:

(a) the applicant is unsuitable to hold the licence by reason of having
been convicted of an offence or for any other reason;

(b) if the licence were to be granted, renewed or transferred the
business to which it relates would be managed by or carried on for
the benefit of a person, other than the applicant, who would be
refused the grant, renewal or transfer of such a licence if he made

the application himself;

® R v Plymouth City Council v Quietlynn [1998] Q.B. 114.

Page 95 19



3.29

3.30

3.31

(c) the number of sex establishments, or of sex establishments of a
particular kind, in the relevant locality at the time the application is
determined is equal to or exceeds the number which the authority
consider is appropriate for that locality;

(d) that the grant or renewal of the licence would be inappropriate,
having regard—

(i) to the character of the relevant locality; or

(i) to the use to which any premises in the vicinity are put; or

(i) to the layout, character or condition of the premises, vehicle,

vessel or stall in respect of which the application is made.

A decision to refuse a licence must be relevant to one or more of the

above grounds.

When determining a licence application, the local authority must have
regard to any rights the applicant may have under Article 10 (right to
freedom of expression) and Article 1, Protocol 1 (protection of property)

of the European Convention on Human Rights.’

The Provision of Services Regulations 2009% amended Schedule 3 to
the 1982 Act to state that, if having considered an application for the
grant, renewal or transfer of a licence, the appropriate authority
decides to refuse it on one or more of the above grounds, it must
provide the applicant with reasons for the decision in writing.

Relevant Locality

3.32

Paragraph 12(3)(c) and 12(3)(d) of Schedule 3 allow appropriate
authorities to refuse applications on grounds related to an assessment
of the “relevant locality”. A licence can be refused if either, at the time
the application is determined the number of sex establishments, or sex
establishments of a particular kind, in the relevant locality is equal to or
exceeds the number that the authority considers appropriate for that

locality; or that a sex establishment would be inappropriate having

" Belfast City Council v Miss Behavin’ Ltd (Northern Ireland) (2007) [2007] UKHL 19
8 Regulation 47

Page 96 20



3.33

3.34

3.35

3.36

regard to the character of the relevant locality, the use to which any
premises in the vicinity are put or the layout, character or condition of

the premises. Nil may be the appropriate number.

Schedule 3 to the 1982 Act does not define “relevant locality” further

than to say that:

(@) inrelation to premises, it is the locality where they are situated;
and

(b) inrelation to a vehicle, vessel or stall, any locality where it is

desired to use it as a sex establishment.

Clearly, the decision regarding what constitutes the ‘relevant locality’ is
a matter for the appropriate authority. However, such questions must

be decided on the facts of the individual application.’

Therefore, it is reasonable and potentially useful to future applicants,
for a local authority to decide in advance of receiving any applications
that certain areas are, or are not, appropriate locations for a sex
establishment or a particular number of sex establishments.
Nevertheless, all applications must be considered on their individual

merits.

When considering a particular application case law has indicated that
the relevant locality does not have to be a clearly pre-defined area nor
are local authorities required to be able to define its precise
boundaries. Therefore, while a local authority is not prevented from
defining the exact area of the relevant locality, it is equally free to
conclude that it simply refers to the area which surrounds the premises
specified in the application and does not require further definition.
Nevertheless a local authority’s view of what constitutes a locality could
be open to challenge if they took a completely unreasonable view of
the area covered, for example, by concluding that two sex

establishments 200 miles away from one another were in the same

° See R v Peterborough City Council ex parte Quietlynn 85 L.G.R. 249 for further guidance.

Page 97 21



3.37

3.38

locality. Case law also indicates that a relevant locality cannot be an

entire local authority area or an entire town or city.°

Once the appropriate authority has determined the relevant locality, it
should seek to make an assessment of the ‘character’ of the relevant
locality and how many, if any, sex establishments, or sex
establishments of a particular kind, it considers appropriate for that

relevant locality.

Section 27 amends paragraph 12(3)(c) of Schedule 3 to allow local
authorities to determine an appropriate number of sex establishments
of a particular kind. In practice, this means that the appropriate
authority may, for example, decide that a particular locality is suitable
for a sex shop but is not suitable for a sexual entertainment venue or

vice versa.

Licence Conditions

3.39

3.40

Once the appropriate authority has decided to grant a licence they are
able to impose terms, conditions and restrictions on that licence, either
in the form of conditions specific to the individual licence under
paragraph 8 of Schedule 3 or standard conditions applicable to all sex
establishments, or particular types of sex establishments, prescribed
by regulations made by the appropriate authority under paragraph 13
of Schedule 3.

Paragraph 13 provides examples of the matters that standard
conditions may address which include but are not restricted to:

e The hours of opening and closing

e Displays and advertisements on or in sex establishments

e The visibility of the interior of a sex establishment to passers-by

e Any change of use from one kind of sex establishment to another

19 R v Peterborough City Council ex parte Quietlynn 85 L.G.R. 249

Page 98 22



3.41

3.42

Where the appropriate authority decides to produce standard
conditions under paragraph 13 they will apply to every licence granted,
renewed or transferred by the authority unless they have been

expressly excluded or varied.

Most sexual entertainment venues will require a 2003 Act licence as
well as a sex establishment licence. Where this is the case, local
authorities should avoid duplicating licence conditions and should
ensure that conditions imposed on the each licence are relevant to the
activities authorised by that licence. For example, conditions relating to
the sale of alcohol should only appear on a premises licences or clubs
premises certificate and should not be imposed on sexual
entertainment venue licence. Likewise, conditions relating the
provisions of relevant entertainment should appear on the sexual
entertainment venue licence and not a premises licence or club
premises certificate. Local authorities should also avoid imposing

conditions on either licence that are contradictory.

Duration of Licences

3.43 Licences for sex establishments can be granted for up to one year.
Appeals
3.44 In the event that the appropriate authority refuses an application for the

grant, renewal or transfer of a sex establishment licence the applicant
may appeal the decision in a magistrates’ court, unless the application
was refused under 12(3)(c) or (d), in which case the applicant can only

challenge the refusal by way of judicial review.

Licensing Policies

3.45

While local authorities are not required to publish a licensing policy
relating to sex establishments they can do so if they wish as long as it

Page 99 23



does not prevent any individual application from being considered on

its merits at the time the application is made.*

3.46 A licensing policy for sex establishments might include statements
about where local authorities are likely to consider to be appropriate or
inappropriate locations for such venues. This could be set out in
general terms by reference to a particular type of premises, such as a
school or place of worship, or more specifically, by reference to a

defined locality.

3.47 Local authorities could also use a licensing policy to indicate how many
sex establishments, or sex establishments of a particular kind, they

consider to be appropriate for a particular locality.

3.48 Local authorities can also produce different policies or a separate set of
criteria for different types of sex establishments. This might be
appropriate to reflect distinctions between the operating requirements
of different sex establishments or the fact that the location that a local
authority considers appropriate for a sex shop may be different to that

of a sexual entertainment venue.

Offences

3.49 The offences under Schedule 3 are set out in paragraphs 20 to 23 of
that Schedule and include:

e knowingly causing or permitting the use of any premises as a sex
establishment without a licence;

e being the holder of a licence, knowingly employing a person in a
sex establishment who is disqualified from holding a licence,;

e being the holder of a licence, knowingly contravenes, or without
reasonable excuse knowingly permits the contravention of, a term,
condition or restriction specified in a licence;

e being the servant or agent of the holder of a licence, without

reasonable excuse knowingly contravenes, or without reasonable

' R v Peterborough City Council ex parte Quietlynn Ltd (1986) 85 LGR 249
Page 100 24



3.50

3.51

excuse knowingly permits the contravention of, a term, condition or
restriction specified in a licence;

e Dbeing the holder of a licence, without reasonable excuse knowingly
permits a person under the age of 18 to enter the establishment

e being the holder of a licence, employs a person known to them to
be under 18 years of age in the business of the establishment.

A person guilty of any of the above offences is liable on summary

conviction to a fine not exceeding £20,000.

It is also an offence for the holder of a licence, without reasonable
excuse to fail to exhibit a copy of the licence and any standard
conditions applicable to the licence in a suitable place as specified in
the licence. A person guilty to this offence shall be liable on summary

conviction to a fine not exceeding level 3 on the standard scale.

Provisions Relating to Existing Premises

3.52

Where a local authority resolves that Schedule 3 apply in their area
having not previously made such a resolution, paragraphs 28 and 29
will have effect for the purpose of sex shop, sex cinemas and hostess
bars, but will not have effect for the purpose of sexual entertainment
venues. The transitional provisions relating to sexual entertainment

venues are explained in part 4 of this guidance.

The Services Directive

3.53

3.54

Schedule 3 to the 1982 Act constitutes an authorisation scheme under
Article 9 of the EU Services Directive 2006/123/EC (“the Directive”)
which was implemented in the UK by the Provision of Services
Regulations 2009 (“2009 Regulations”), which came into force on 28th
December 2009. Local authorities must ensure they comply with the

Regulations when applying the licensing provisions in Schedule 3.

The Department of Business, Innovation and Skills (BIS) has produced

guidance for both businesses and local authorities to assist in
Page 101 25



3.55

understanding the impact of the Directive and 2009 Regulations and

what service providers and relevant authorities must do in order to

comply. Both guidance documents can be found on the BIS website:

http://www.berr.gov.uk/whatwedo/europeandtrade/europe/services-
directive/page9583.html

In particular, the 2009 Regulations may affect the way in which local

authorities set application fees, process applications and grant

licences.

Page 102

26


http://www.berr.gov.uk/whatwedo/europeandtrade/europe/services-directive/page9583.html
http://www.berr.gov.uk/whatwedo/europeandtrade/europe/services-directive/page9583.html

TRANSITIONAL PROVISIONS

4.1

This section provides guidance on the transitional provisions as set out
in the Policing and Crime Act 2009 (Commencement No.1, and
Transitional and Saving Provisions)(England) Order 2010 (“the
Transitional Order”) and the Policing and Crime Act 2009
(Consequential Provisions)(England) Order 2010 (“the Consequential
Order”) and the equivalent orders made by Welsh Ministers for Wales.

Transitional Period

4.2

4.3

The ‘transitional period’ will last for 12-months beginning with the date
that the local authority resolves that Schedule 3 as amended by the
2009 Act will come into force in their area (‘the 1st appointed day’). Six
months following the 1st appointed day will be known as the ‘2nd
appointed day’ and the day on which the transitional period ends will be

known as the ‘3rd appointed day’.

The appointed days will vary across local authority areas depending on
when individual local authorities resolve that the provisions will come

into force in their area.

Existing Operators

4.4

To allow time to comply with the new regime, existing operators, who,
immediately before the 1st appointed day, have a 2003 Act licence and
lawfully use premises as a sexual entertainment venue under that
licence or are undertaking preparatory work to use the venue in that
way will be allowed to continue to provide relevant entertainment until
the 3rd appointed day or the determination of any application they have
submitted before that time (including any appeal against the refusal to
grant a licence), whichever is later.

Page 103 27



4.5

4.6

“Preparatory work” refers to work carried out by an operator, such as a
refurbishment or refit, in order that they can use the premises as a
sexual entertainment venue in the future. The operator will have been
granted a 2003 Act licence before the 1* appointed day but will not
have used the premises as a sexual entertainment venue by that date.
It is likely that such operators will be known to a local authority.
However, where a dispute arises between a local authority and an
licence-holder over whether the licence-holder qualifies as an existing
operator by virtue of this provision the local authority will need to seek
evidence from the licence-holder to demonstrate that they clearly
intended to operate a sexual entertainment venue in the future and

work had been done to achieve this end.

For the purposes of the Transitional Order a “2003 Act Licence” means
a premises licence or club premises certificate under which it is lawful

to provide relevant entertainment.

New Applicants

4.7

New applicants are people who wish to use premises as a sexual
entertainment venue after the 1st appointed day but do not already
have a premises licence or club premises certificate to operate as such
under the 2003 Act or do have such a licence but have not taken any
steps towards operating as such. After the 1st appointed day new
applicants will not be able to operate as a sexual entertainment venue

until they have been granted a sexual entertainment venue licence.

Determining Applications Received On or Before the 2nd Appointed Day

4.8

Applicants will be able to submit their application for a sexual

entertainment venue from the 1st appointed day onwards.

Page 104 28



4.9

4.10

As the appropriate authority is able to refuse applications having regard
to the number of sex establishment they consider appropriate for a
particular locality, all applications made on or after the 1% appointed
day but on or before the 2nd appointed day shall be considered
together. This will ensure that applicants are given sufficient time to
submit their application and all applications received on or before the
2nd appointed day are considered on their individual merit and not on a

first come first serve basis.

No applications shall be determined before the 2nd appointed day.
After the 2nd appointed day the appropriate authority shall decide what
if any licences should be granted. If a new applicant is granted a
licence it will take effect immediately. If an existing operator is granted
a licence, it will not take effect until the 3rd appointed day, up to which
point they will be allowed to continue to operate under their existing

premises licence or club premises certificate.

Determining Applications Received After the 2nd Appointed Day

411

412

Applications made after the 2nd appointed day shall be considered
when they are made but only once all applications made on or before
that date have been determined. However, reference to determination
here does not include references to the determination of any appeal

against the refusal of a licence.

As with applications received on or before the 2nd appointed day,
licences granted to new applicants shall take effect immediately and
licences granted to existing operators shall take effect from the 3rd

appointed day or, if later, the date the application is determined.

Outstanding Applications

4.13

Local authorities should attempt where possible to determine
outstanding applications made under the 2003 Act, which include an

application for the provision of relevant entertainment, before the date

Page 105 29



4.14

that Schedule 3 as amended by the 2009 Act comes into force in their

area.

Where it has not been possible to determine application before the 1st
appointed day, local authorities should advise applicants that they will
need to submit an application for a sex establishment licence as set out
in Schedule 3 if they wish to provide relevant entertainment. From the
1st appointed day onwards outstanding applicants shall be dealt with
as though they are new applicants.

Existing Licence Conditions

4.15

4.16

4.17

In many cases licences granted under the 2003 Act to existing
operators will contain conditions that relate expressly and exclusively to
the provision of relevant entertainment. Such a condition might prohibit
contact between a performer and customer during a lap dance. In
these cases, in order to avoid duplication, where conditions on
premises licences or club premises certificates relate only to the
provision of relevant entertainment, they shall be read as if they were

deleted from the 3rd appointed day onwards.

In cases where conditions on a premises licence or clubs premises
certificate are inconsistent with, and less onerous than, the conditions
in the licence granted under the 1982 Act they shall likewise be read as

though they have been deleted.

Where a local authority decides to grant a sex establishment licence to
an existing operator, who is subject to conditions on their existing
premises licence or club premises certificate that relate expressly to
the provision of relevant entertainment, they may wish to replicate the
existing conditions on the new sex establishment licence if they believe
that the existing conditions are sufficient. However, they could equally
decide to impose new conditions consistent with Schedule 3 if they
believe that new or additional conditions are necessary.

Page 106 30



4.18

Although the Transitional Order does not require redundant conditions
to be physically removed from a premises licence or club premises
certificate, operators and local authorities may agree that this is
desirable in order to clarify the operator’s legal obligations. Such
changes can be made via the minor variations procedure under section
41A of the 2003 Act.

ECHR Considerations

4.19

4.20

The Transitional Order allows local authorities to refuse applications,
whether they are from existing operators or new applicants, on one or
more grounds set out in paragraph 12 of Schedule 3. When making
such decisions, local authorities must take into account any rights the
existing operators may have under Article 1, Protocol 1 of the
European Convention on Human Rights (which entitles every person to
the peaceful enjoyment of their possessions) and Article 10 (freedom of

expression).

In light of the leading case of Belfast City Council v Miss Behavin’ Ltd
(Northern Ireland)*? it would be prudent for local authorities to assume
that freedom of expression includes the right to use particular premises
as sexual entertainment venues and that a person who is denied the
right to use his premises as a sexual entertainment venue where he
already has a licence to do so under the 2003 Act (or in future under
the 1982 Act) has been deprived of possessions. (Some Lords did not
decide this point or disagreed that such rights were engaged and
therefore it would still be open to local authorities to argue that such
rights were not engaged in a particular case). However, in any event,
the House of Lords were agreed that such rights would only be
engaged at a low level. This led Lord Hoffman to say that if the local
authority exercises its powers rationally and in accordance with the
purposes of the statutory provisions, it would require very unusual facts

for it to amount to a disproportionate restriction on Convention rights.

1212007] UKHL 19

Page 107 31



4.21 Nevertheless, local authorities would be well advised to consider
whether any interference with the applicant’s rights under Article 10 or
Article 1, Protocol 1 of the European Convention on Human Rights is
necessary and proportionate for the prevention of disorder or crime, for
the protection of health or morals or for the protection of the rights and
freedoms of others or, in the case of Article 1, Protocol 1, can be

justified in the general interest.

Changes to Licensing Policies

4.22 Many local authorities who have already adopted Schedule 3 will have
published a licensing policy for sex establishments. Such policies may
provide a useful guide to potential applicants about whether a particular

application is likely to be successful or not.

4.23 Upon resolving to adopt the sexual entertainment venue provisions
introduced by the 2009 Act, local authorities should ensure that their
licensing policies for sex establishments are up to date and reflect the
changes introduced by Section 27. This could mean updating existing
policies or producing a policy specific to regulation of sexual

entertainment venues.

London

Sex Encounter Establishments

4.24 London local authorities which have adopted Schedule 3 to the 1982
Act as amended by the Greater London Council (General Powers) Act
1986 are able to regulate sex encounter establishments. However,
under sub-paragraph 3A(i) premises that hold a premises licence or
club premises certificate for the provision of regulated entertainment or
late night refreshment are not regarded as sex encounter
establishments. This means that, in practice, there are very few, if any,

premises that are licensed as sex encounter establishments.

Page 108 32



4.25 Therefore, the transitional provisions set out that where a local
authority, which has previously adopted provisions to regulate sex
encounter establishments, passes a resolution to adopt Schedule 3, as
amended by section 27, the existing sex encounter establishment
category will be replaced by the new sexual entertainment venue

category.

4.26 In these circumstances, an existing sex encounter establishment
licence will be treated as though it had been granted under the new
sexual entertainment venue regime with any terms, conditions and

restrictions carried over.

Hostess Bars

4.27 The hostess bar category of sex establishment, as introduced by
section 33 of the London Local Authorities Act 2007, is largely
unaffected by the 2009 Act provisions.

4.28 In cases where a London local authority has already resolved that the
hostess bar category has effect in their area, they will be able to retain
this category after the amendments made by the 2009 Act have been
adopted and the sex encounter establishment category has been
repealed, subject to the amendments made to Schedule 3 by the 2009
Act. Where London local authorities have not adopted the sexual
entertainment venue provisions, it will still be open for them to resolve
to adopt the hostess bar category after the 2009 Act provisions have
been adopted without having to adopt the sex encounter establishment

category.

Soliciting for Custom

4.29 Under Section 22 of the London Local Authorities Act 2004, as
amended by Section 72 of the London Local Authorities Act 2007, it is
an offence in London to solicit for custom for a sex establishment.
However, paragraph 2A provides a defence if the premises concerned

are licensed under Part 3 of the 2003 Act.
Page 109 33



4.30 When a London local authority resolves to adopt the provisions
introduced by Section 27, it will be a defence if the premises are
licensed as a sexual entertainment venue under Schedule 3 of the

1982 Act or are operating lawfully under a 2003 Act licence during the
transitional period at the time of the alleged offence.

Page 110 34



ANNEX A: GUIDE TO TRANSITIONAL PERIOD AND EXISTING

-

\_

SEV licence takes
effect on 3rd
appointed date or
when granted,
whichever is later

Can continue to
operate as an SEV
until the 3rd
appointed day or
the application
(including any
appeal) is
determined,
whichever is later

- J

Page 111

SEV licence takes
effect on 3rd
appointed date or
when granted,
whichever is later

OPERATORS
Has the local No 4 A
authority adopted
powers to regulate »  SEVlicence not
\ SEVs? (Contact required
. local authority if
Appointed Days uncertain)
1st Appointed Day o / - /
The day on which the SEV regime Yes §
comes into force in a local _
authority area and the beginning of Are you an No SEV licence not
the transitional period eXiSting Operator? required or see
(See guidance or > guide for new
2nd Appointed Day contact local applicants if you
The day 6 months after the 1st authority if want to operate an
appointed day uncertaln) SEV
_ (. J - J
3rd Appointed Day Yes
The day 6 months after the 2nd v ~ - ~
appointed day and the end of the
transitional period Do you want to NO" | Allowed to operate
operate a SEV > asa SEV until the
NB: If you are uncertain as to what after the 3rd 3rd appointed day
dates the appointed days will fall appointed day? under existing
please contact your local authority. authorisation
- J - J
j Yes |
Have you
submitted a SEV
application on or
before the 2nd
appointed day?
Yes /\ /\No
4 A 4 Application
All Application considered once
received on or applications
before 2nd received on or
appointed day before 2nd
considered appointed day
together have been
determined
(. J (. J
Granted? Granted?
Yes / \ No Yes / \ No
4 ) 4 )

Can continue to
operate as a SEV
until the 3rd
appointed date or
the application
(including any
appeal) is
determined,
whichever is later

- )

35



ANNEX B: GUIDE TO TRANSITIONAL PERIOD AND NEW

APPLICANTS

-

Appointed Days

~

1st Appointed Day

The day on which the SEV regime
comes into force in a local
authority area and the beginning of
the transitional period

2nd Appointed Day
The day 6 months after the 1st
appointed day

3rd Appointed Day

The day 6 months after the 2nd
appointed day and the end of the
transitional period

NB: If you are uncertain as to what
dates the appointed days will fall
please contact your local authority.

- /

Has the local
authority adopted

No

s

powers to regulate
SEVs? (Contact
local authority if
uncertain)

- J

Yes v

Are you an
existing operator?

Yes

SEV licence not
required

~

(See guidance or
contact local
authority if
uncertain)

- J

No‘

4 N

A

No

See guide for
existing operators

s

Do you want to
operate an SEV?

Yes Y

~

Have you
submitted a SEV
application on or

before the 2nd
appointed day?

/

All Application
received on or
before 2nd
appointed day
considered
together

\_

Yes\/\

-

Granted

\

Yes /

\No

SEV licence takes
effect when
granted

Appeal decision or

SEV licence not
required

~

/\ﬁ
Application

considered once
applications
received on or
before 2nd
appointed day
have been
determined

Yes /

Granted

reapply for a
licence

SEV licence takes
effect when

granted

\No

Appeal decision or

reapply for a

Page 112

licence

36



Agenda Iltem 6

Appendix 10

APPENDIX 10
Special Procedure for the Licensing (General) Sub-Committee — Applications for
Sex Establishment licences
One of the Council's Corporate Legal Advisors will be in attendance throughout the

proceedings and he/she is there to advise Members. Sub-Committee Members may seek
clarification on points of procedure at any time.

Please note that the Sub-Committee will normally adjourn for lunch at 1:00 p.m.
and that comfort breaks will be taken at the discretion of the Chair at appropriate
points during the meeting.

1. INTRODUCTION

¢ Everyone to introduce themselves
¢ The Licensing Officer will introduce the report, including background information
and any written objections received.
¢ Members' questions to the Licensing Officer
2. OBJECTORS

If Objectors (including Police) have attended indicating a wish to address the Sub-
Committee the Sub-Committee will consider each request in light of its discretion
to permit oral representations.

As a guide, such representations will only be permitted if appropriate in order to
briefly summarise and expand upon the main points of objection as set out in
written submissions. Mere recitation of previous written submissions will not be
permitted, nor will the introduction of entirely new grounds of objection.

Questions of Objectors will not be permitted by any party (including Members).
3. APPLICATION
The applicant or their representative will outline the details of the application and
call any witnesses in support.
Questions may be asked of the applicant or of any witnesses by:
Licensing Officer
Members of the Sub-Committee

The applicant may call supporting witnesses at their discretion during the
presentation of their application. Questions may be asked by the Sub-Committee
Members / Licensing Officer of such witnesses at any appropriate point in their
presentation

If any written objections have been received the applicant or their representative
will be invited to comment on them

4. SUMMING UP
The applicant or their representative will have a final opportunity to sum up their
application.

5. CONSIDERATION OF DECISION - CONFIDENTIAL SESSION

Members of the Sub-Committee will retire to consider the decision. In doing so the
Solicitor to the Sub-Committee and the Sub-Committee Administrator will retire
with them, but will take no part in the discussion of the merits of the case or what
the decision should be

Page 113



Should the Solicitor to the Sub-Committee be required to clarify any points of law,
these will be repeated in the public session.

6. ANNOUNCEMENT OF DECISION

Sub-Committee Members will return and the Chair of the Sub-Committee will
deliver the decision in public session. The Licensing Officer will confirm this
decision in writing to the Applicant within 7 days of the Sub-Committee decision,
together with details of any relevant right of appeal.

Note:  Thjs procedure note is issued as a guide only — the order and conduct of business
may be varied by the person presiding at any time in order to facilitate the
determination of the matter, having regard to statutory restrictions and the rules of
natural justice.

Page 114



AgendBTtEm 6

Appendix 11

Sex Establishment Licensing Policy
1. Introduction

1.1. Southampton City Council as Licensing Authority has a statutory duty to administer the
licensing regime in accordance with the law, not in accordance with any moral standpoint
and therefore will not take into account any unrelated considerations that would call into
question the validity or vires of any subsequent decision(s) made. All decisions will be
based on the facts of an individual case and having regard to any policy in force.
Southampton City Council recognises that Parliament has made it a lawful activity to
operate a licensed sex establishment and such businesses are a legitimate part of the
retail and leisure industries.

1.2. This policy document relates to the administration of applications for licences for sex
establishments. Sex establishments will fall into one of the following categories:

o Sex shops
. Sex cinemas
° Sexual entertainment venues

2. Background Information

2.1. The licensing authority recognises that the entertainment industry in Southampton is a
major contributor to the local economy. It attracts tourists and visitors, makes for vibrant
communities and is a major employer. Commercial occupiers of premises have legitimate
expectations for an environment that is attractive and sustainable for their businesses.

2.2. The city also has a substantial residential population, whose amenity the licensing
authority has a duty to protect. In some areas local residents are affected by an increase
in the concentration of entertainment uses and longer hours of operation.

2.3. Southampton is the south coast’s regional capital with a population of over 236,600 in an
area of 50 square km. The dynamic and vibrant city is forward-looking, balancing steady
growth as a prosperous commercial centre with a high quality of life for its citizens.
Southampton has been voted one of the most pleasant places to work in the UK, and is
the gateway to a wide range of world-class features from the Solent with its maritime
opportunities to the new national park in the New Forest.

2.4. Southampton boasts the south’s largest concentration of major companies and is home
to some of the UK’s biggest brands, from Ordnance Survey, Carnival, Skandia Life to
HSBC. Commercially, Southampton’s success is also notable. The West Quay shopping
centre opened in 2000 and in the years since, Southampton is 15th nationally in the table
of shopping destinations. IKEA opened its first UK city centre store in 2009. Additionally,
it is home to two universities, the University of Southampton and Southampton Solent
University and has a student population exceeding 35,000.

2.5. Southampton is the largest city in southeast England outside London, and is seeing
expansion in important emerging sectors, including media and creative industries,
business and financial services, marine engineering, tourism and defence applications.
Southampton has a rich heritage, with a famous seafaring history as an important Roman
and then Saxon port. The Old Town is surrounded by some of the best-preserved

Page 115

Sex_Establishment_Policy 20130425 Page one of ten © 2013 Southampton City Council



2.6.

2.7.

2.8.

2.9.

medieval walls in the country. Monuments commemorating links with Henry V, the Pilgrim
Fathers and RMS Titanic can be found around the city.

2.4 million people live within an hour’s drive, with over half a million within the “travel-to-
work” area. Southampton’s position in the centre of the south coast offers a wealth of
advantages. Southampton is the region's cultural heart with a nationally renowned art
gallery and first class venues for opera, theatre, music and cinema. Southampton is the
south's principal media centre: the BBC and radio and regional newspapers are all based
in the city region. There are plans for significant new performance, exhibition and studio
space in the city’s “Cultural Quarter” which has been awarded an Arts Council grant of
£7.5 million. The Council is also moving forward with long-standing plans for a multi-use
entertainment, conference and leisure venue in the city and significant improvements to
the waterfront adjacent to Royal Pier and Mayflower Park.

The city and Port of Southampton is at the heart of the country’s international cruise
industry and enjoys a growing market with over 1.5 million cruise ship passengers
passing through the port annually.

Southampton lies at the very centre of the south coast’s communications network,
providing excellent links to national and international destinations through Southampton
International Airport and the Port of Southampton. The city maintains a strong
international profile and has forged close commercial and cultural ties with European and
Far Eastern centres.

At the time of drafting this policy, four licensed sex shops are operating in the city.

3. Definitions

3.1.
3.2.
3.2.1.

3.3.

3.4.
3.4.1.

For the purposes of this policy, the following definitions will apply:
Sex Shop (paragraphs 4(1) &(2), Schedule 3 of the 1982 Act)

Any premises, vessel, vehicle or stall used for a business which consists to a significant
degree of selling, hiring, exchanging, lending, displaying or demonstrating:

° Sex articles; or

. Other things intended for use in connection with, or for the purpose of stimulating or
encouraging sexual activity or acts of force or restraint which are associated with
sexual activity.

No premises shall be treated as a sex shop by reason only of their use for the exhibition
of moving pictures by whatever means produced.

Sex Article (paragraphs 4(3) & (4), Schedule 3 of the 1982 Act)

Anything made for use in connection with, or for the purpose of stimulating or
encouraging:

o Sexual activity; or

o Acts of force or restraint which are associated with sexual activity; and anything to
which the sub-paragraph below applies.

o This sub-paragraph applies:

o0 To any article containing or embodying matter to be read or looked at or anything
intended to be used, either alone or as one of a set, for the reproduction or
manufacture of any such article; and

o To any recording of vision or sound, which is concerned primarily with the
portrayal of, or primarily deals with or relates to, or is intended to stimulate or
encourage, sexual activity or acts of force or restraint which are associated with
sexual activity; or is concerned primarily with the portrayal of, or primarily deals

y S:fg imarlly portray p y

Sex_Establishment_Policy 20130425 Page two of ten © 2013 Southampton City Council



3.5.
3.5.1.

3.5.2.

3.6.

3.6.1.

3.6.2.

3.6.3.

3.6.4.

with or relates to, genital organs, or urinary or excretory functions.
Sex Cinema (paragraphs 3(1) & (2), Schedule 3 of the 1982)

Any premises, vehicle, vessel or stall used to a significant degree for the exhibition of
moving pictures, by whatever means produced, which:

o Are concerned primarily with the portrayal of, or primarily deal with or relate to, or
are intended to stimulate or encourage —

0 Sexual activity; or
0 Acts of force or restraint which are associated with sexual activity; or

o Are concerned primarily with the portrayal of, or primarily deal with or relate
to, genital organs or urinary or excretory functions,

o But does not include a dwelling-house to which the public is not admitted.
No premises shall be treated as a sex cinema by reason only —

o If they may be used for an exhibition of film (within the meaning of paragraph 15 of
Schedule 1 to the Licensing Act 2003) by virtue of an authorisation (within the
meaning of section 136 of that Act), of their use in accordance with that
authorisation.

o By their use for an exhibition to which section 6 of the Act (certain non-commercial
exhibitions) applies given by an exempted organisation within the meaning of
section 6(6) of the former Cinemas Act 1985.

Sexual Entertainment Venue (paragraphs 2A(1) &(2), Schedule 3 of the 1982 Act as amended by
section 27 of the 2009 Act)

Any premises at which relevant entertainment is provided before a live audience for the
financial gain of the organiser or entertainer.

Relevant entertainment is defined as:

o Any live performance or live display of nudity which is of such a nature that, ignoring
financial gain, it must reasonably be assumed to be provided solely or principally for
the purpose of sexually stimulating any member of an audience (whether by verbal
or other means).

In terms of considering what constitutes “relevant entertainment” each case shall be
judged on its merits but guidance produced by the Home Office suggests that the
definition of relevant entertainment would apply to the following forms of entertainment as
they are most commonly understood:

o Lap dancing

o Pole dancing

o Table dancing
o Strip shows

o Peep shows

o Live sex shows.

However, the above list is not exhaustive and, as the understanding of the exact nature
of these descriptions may vary, should merely be used as an indicator for certain types of
entertainment as ultimately decisions to licence premises as sexual entertainment
venues shall depend on the content of the entertainment provided and not the name it is
given.

Page 117

Sex_Establishment_Policy 20130425 Page three of ten © 2013 Southampton City Council



3.6.5. The following are not sexual entertainment venues for the purposes of this policy:

Sex cinemas and sex shops;

Premises which provide entertainment on an infrequent basis. These are defined
as premises where:-

o0 No relevant entertainment has been provided on more than 11 occasions
within a 12 month period,;

o0 No such occasion has begun within a period of one month beginning with
the end of the previous occasions; and

0 No such occasion has lasted longer than 24 hours.

Other premises or types of performances or displays exempted by an order of the
Secretary of State;

Private dwellings with no public admittance.

4. Mandatory Grounds for Refusal of an Application (paragraph 12(1), Schedule 3 of the

1982 Act)

4.1. The 1982 Act sets out 5 mandatory grounds for refusing a sex establishment licence
which are set out below:

4.1.1. That the applicant:

Is under the age of 18;
Is for the time being disqualified from holding a sex establishment licence;

Is not a body corporate, and is not resident or has not been resident in an EEA
state for six months preceding the date of the application;

Is a body corporate which is not incorporated in an EEA state;

Has, in the period of 12 months preceding the date of the application, been refused
the grant or renewal of a licence for the premises, vehicle, vessel or stall in respect
of which the application is made, unless the refusal has been reversed on appeal.

5. Discretionary Grounds for Refusal of an Application (paragraph 12(3), Schedule 3 of
the 1982 Act)

5.1. The 1982 Act also sets out four discretionary grounds for refusing a sex establishment
licence. An application for transfer of a licence may be refused on either or both grounds
I. and ii. set out below.

i.  The applicant is unsuitable to hold a licence by reason of having been convicted of an
offence or for any other reason;

ii. If the licence were to be granted, the business to which it relates would be managed
by or carried on for the benefit of a person, other than the applicant, who would be
refused the grant of such a licence if he made the application himself;

lii.  The number of sex establishments, or sex establishments of a particular kind, in the
relevant locality at the time the application is made is equal to or exceeds the number
which the authority consider is appropriate for that locality;

iv.  The grant or renewal would be inappropriate, having regard —

o0 To the character of the relevant locality;

o To the use to which ay premises in the vicinity are put;

o To the layout, character or condition of the premises, vehicle, vessel or stall
Page 118

Sex_Establishment_Policy 20130425 Page four of ten © 2013 Southampton City Council



in respect of which the application is made.
5.2. Suitability of applicant

5.2.1. When considering the suitability or otherwise of an applicant, the Licensing Authority will
have due regard not only to whether or not an applicant has been convicted of an offence
but any other grounds which would call into question his/her suitability.

5.2.2. The Licensing Authority will wish to be satisfied that:

o The applicant is sufficiently trustworthy to operate the sex establishment in
accordance with the terms and conditions imposed on any licence granted, as well
as the law;

o The welfare of the performers at the licensed premises will be protected;
o That the safety of the public attending the premises will be provided for; and

o The needs and rights of persons/businesses living or working in the area, and
indeed the area itself, are recognised and respected.

5.2.3. In those cases where an applicant has been convicted of an offence, the Licensing
Authority will consider, on individual merit, the nature and seriousness of the offence and
the time which has elapsed since the date of conviction.

5.2.4. Applicants should be aware that certain offences will give rise to particular concerns and
in particular will include:

o Sexual offences;
o Offences involving prostitution, drugs, dishonesty or violence; and
o Licensing offences.

5.2.5. In considering the overall suitability of an applicant to hold a licence, the following factors
will be taken into account by the Licensing Authority:

o Honesty and integrity of the applicant;

o Relevant experience of running similar sex establishments;

o Understanding of the terms and conditions relating to sex establishments;

o Reliability to run the premises in accordance with the licence;

. Track record of compliance in relation to other premises and/or licensing regimes;
o Intention to manage the premises himself or to employ others in that role;

o Existence or otherwise of a credible management structure to demonstrate the
ability to comply with operating conditions incorporating such matters as:

o0 Managerial competence
o Presence

o Employment of individuals who have sufficient experience in running such
premises

o Internal enforcement of rules (including training, monitoring, publication of
rates for performers and customers)

Viable business plan
Demonstrate ability to act in the best interests of performers
Preparation and enforcement of a written welfare policy for performers

O O O O

Procedures in place to ensure performers are adults and entitled to live and
Page 119

Sex_Establishment_Policy 20130425 Page five of ten © 2013 Southampton City Council



work in UK

o Demonstrate measures to protect the public (such as transparent rate of
charges and prevention of solicitation)

5.2.6. In all cases, the Licensing Authority will give serious consideration to the observations of
the Chief Officer of Police in relation to concerns expressed about the suitability of an
individual applicant, body corporate or an individual officer of a company.

5.3. Suitability of the manager of the business or other beneficiary

5.3.1. The Licensing Authority will need to be satisfied that the proposed premises and
activities are not a device to facilitate illegal activity and that those persons in ultimate
control of the sex establishment can demonstrate that they will operate the premises in
such a manner so as to promote the objectives of the legislation.

5.4. Number of sex establishments

5.4.1. Southampton City Council recognises that the Act allows discretion by the Licensing
Authority to impose a numerical control on the number of sex establishments in a
particular locality (including the provision that nil may be an appropriate number) and that
this control can apply to both the overall number of sex establishments and also the
number of each kind.

5.5. Character of the relevant locality

5.5.1. Applicants should be aware that the Licensing Authority may refuse a licence on this
ground regardless of what may or may not be an appropriate number of sex
establishment licences within the locality.

5.5.2. In considering whether it is appropriate to grant a licence having regard to the character
of the relevant locality, the Licensing Authority will take account of the following factors,
together with such other factors as may be considered relevant in the individual
circumstances of the case:

o The general character of the area (e.g. family residential, family leisure or
educational area);

o The impact of the premises on the character of the area,;

o The current use for night-time leisure activities including existing sufficient
representation of sex-orientated uses;

o Gender equality issues, including whether the proposed use, particularly at night,
would deter women from using the area comfortably or at all;

o Raising the fear of crime in the locality should further sex-orientated uses be
authorised;

o Effects upon regeneration and tourism in the area;

o Level of genuine demand (including the risk that excess supply would drive down
standards and lead to problems associated with compliance with conditions.

5.6. Use of premises in the vicinity

5.6.1. Applications for sex establishment licences may be refused where the Licensing
Authority considers that the grant of a licence would be inappropriate having regard to
the use of other premises in the vicinity. Whilst the term “vicinity” is not defined in the
1982 Act, the Licensing Authority considers that “vicinity” will be a smaller area than
“locality” as referred to in paragraph 5.4 above.

5.6.2. Applicants should be aware that the Licensing Authority may refuse a licence on this
ground regardless of the character of a locality or indeed what may or may not be an

appropriate number of sex establishrFr)lent Ii1c2(361ces within it.
age
Sex_Establishment_Policy 20130425 Page six of ten 9 © 2013 Southampton City Council



5.6.3. When considering the type of uses which may be deemed to be inappropriate, due
regard will be given to the suitability of the proposed location of the premises and will
take into account relevant factors including, but not limited to, the presence of what may
be regarded as sensitive issues (e.g. dwellings, places of worship, schools, youth clubs,
community centres, women'’s refuges, libraries, parks or swimming pools).

5.6.4. Applicants are advised to consider the impact of their proposed application prior to
considering whether or not they wish to operate a sex establishment business in an area
and state in their application how they believe any potential impacts could be mitigated.
The Licensing Authority reserves the right to take into account other issues or
considerations that may arise at the application and consultation stage as well as during
the licence period.

5.7. Layout, character or condition

5.7.1. When considering the issue of a licence in terms of its layout, character or condition, the
Licensing Authority will give consideration to general factors such as:

e Provision of proper access for disabled people;

e Safe in terms of its structure and overall standards of maintenance for the
building;

e Sufficient provision for surveillance and overall supervision;
e Standard of fit out of the premises;

5.7.2. While the Licensing Authority will not refuse a licence merely because the premises do
not have planning permission for use as a sex establishment, the authority will take into
account the absence of planning permission to the extent relevant to the statutory
grounds for renewal.

6. Application Process

6.1. Application forms are available from the Council’'s website at:
www.southampton.gov.uk/sexest/

6.2. Upon receipt of an application for the grant, renewal, transfer or variation of a licence, the
Licensing Authority will consult, at minimum, with the following bodies/individuals and will
have regard to any observations received from them:

o Hampshire Constabulary

o Hampshire Fire and Rescue Service

o Southampton Safeguarding Children Board

o Southampton City Council’s Planning and Development Manager

6.3. An application for the grant, renewal, transfer or variation of a licence must be formally
advertised in two specific ways:

o Within 7 days after the date of application, the applicant must arrange for a public
notice to be published in a local newspaper;

o Where the application is in respect of premises, the applicant must also display a
notice of the application on or near the premises in question. The notice must be
placed in such a position so that it can be conveniently read by the public. The
notice must be displayed for twenty-one days starting with the date of the
application.

6.4. The notice must include information relating to:
o Details of the premises to which the application relates;
Page 121

Sex_Establishment_Policy 20130425 Page seven of ten © 2013 Southampton City Council



6.5.

o Details of the applicant;

o Type of sex establishment licence being applied for;

o Whether the application is for the grant, renewal, transfer or variation of a licence;
o Details of how persons may object; and

o Closing date for representations.

The applicant must also send a copy of the application to the Chief Officer of Police for
the local authority area no later than seven days after the date of application, unless the
application is submitted electronically and in which case the Licensing Authority will serve
notice on the Police.

7. Consideration of an Application

7.1.

7.2

7.3.

7.4.

The Licensing Authority will have regard to all information provided by an applicant in
support of an application.

Any person wishing to object to an application must give notice of their objection in
writing, stating the general terms of the objection no later than twenty-eight days after the
date of the application. Any person may object to an application. However objections
must be relevant to the grounds send out in paragraph 12, Schedule 3 of the 1982 Act.
Those grounds are set out in sections 4 and 5 of this policy. Objections based solely on
moral grounds/values will not be considered.

The Licensing Authority will notify the applicant, in writing, of the general terms of any
objection received within the twenty-eight day period allowed for objections.

The 1982 Act protects the rights of objectors to remain anonymous. The Licensing
Authority will not reveal names or addresses of any objector to the applicant without their
consent. However, general information such as the objector lives within a certain
distance of the premises in question will be released in order to give the applicant an
opportunity to rebut any concerns so far as geographical vicinity or locality is concerned.

8. Determining an Application

8.1.

8.2.
8.3.

8.4.

All applications where objections have been received or where consultees have raised
concerns will be referred to the Licensing Sub-Committee for determination at a hearing
and all parties will be given the opportunity to put forward their case at the hearing.

The Licensing Authority will consider each application on its individual merits.

The Licensing Sub-Committee will retire at the end of the hearing to make its decision on
the facts of the case in private.

In most cases the Licensing Sub-Committee will deliver its decision and reasons at the
end of the hearing. However, where it is considered proportionate and necessary to do
so, the Licensing Sub-Committee may delay making a decision so as to allow for
consideration of the respective cases put before it and so as to permit further time for a
reasoned decision to be formulated. Any decision and reasons will be communicated, in
writing, to the applicant and all other parties within 10 working days of the hearing.

9. Hearings

9.1.

9.2.

Hearings will be arranged as soon as reasonably practicable following the end of the
consultation period. Applicants and other interested parties will be given at least ten
days’ notice of the proposed date for hearing and more where possible to do so.

All applicants will be given the opportunity to appear before and be heard by the
Licensing Sub-Committee responsible for determining the application. Applicants will be

Page 122

Sex_Establishment_Policy 20130425 Page eight of ten © 2013 Southampton City Council



9.3.

9.4.

9.5.

10.

10.1.

10.2.

10.3.

10.4.

10.5.
11.

11.1.

12.

12.1.

12.2.

12.3.

entitled to be represented by a legal advisor or similar agent. Witnesses may be called
with permission from the Chair of the Sub-Committee.

Persons objecting to applications will also be given the opportunity to appear at the
hearing to discuss their objections.

The hearing will take place in public except where the public interest requires otherwise,
although members of the public being disruptive will be required to leave the meeting.

All parties will be allowed an equal maximum period of time for the presentation of their
case but it is expected that all parties keep points pertinent and the discussion moving in
the interests of cost and efficiency.

Appeals

A right of appeal exists for applicants in respect of the refusal of applications for the
grant, renewal, transfer or variation of a sex establishment licence. A right of appeal is
also available in relation to the imposition of conditions and revocation of licences.

However, appeals against mandatory refusals (see section 4 of this policy document) can
only be lodged on the basis that the mandatory ground does not apply to the appellant.

Additionally, no appeal provisions exist in respect of refusals to grant or renew licences
on the discretionary grounds of:

o The number of sex establishments in the relevant locality;
o The character of the relevant locality;

o The use to which ay premises in the vicinity are put;

o The layout, character or condition of the premises.

The time limit for lodging an appeal to the Magistrates’ Court is twenty-one days
beginning with the date of notification of the decision. The commencement time for the
purposes of this section will be from when the applicant receives formal written
notification of the decision and reasons.

The 1982 Act also provides for further appeal to the Crown Court.

Duration of Licences

Licences for sex establishments may be granted for a maximum period of one year but
the Licensing Authority may grant a shorter period of time if it thinks fit.

Licence Conditions

The Licensing Authority will impose standard conditions that are relevant to all licensed
sex establishments. These may include, but are not limited to:

o Opening and closing hours

o Displays and advertisements on or in sex establishments

o Visibility of the interior of a sex establishment to passers-by

o Any change of use from one kind of sex establishment to another.

The Licensing Authority has made Regulations as to standard conditions which are set
out at Appendix A to this policy. Such conditions will be imposed unless they are varied
in an individual case. Any applicant for such variation must set out the variation
requested in the application, together with reasons why the variation is sought and how it
intends to achieve the objectives of the standard conditions if a variation is permitted.

The Licensing Authority may also specify other conditions specific to individual premises
Page 123

Sex_Establishment_Policy 20130425 Page nine of ten © 2013 Southampton City Council



13.

dependant on the type of activity undertaken and the type of premises. These may
include, but are not limited to:

o Specifying minimum distances between the audience and performers

o Control of access to changing room facilities

o Control of private viewings

o Additional conditions may be imposed where appropriate and necessary.

Waiving of the need for a Sex Establishment Licence (paragraph 7, Schedule 3

of the 1982 Act.)

13.1.

13.2.

13.3.

13.4.

14.

14.1.

14.2.

15.

15.1.

15.2.

In certain circumstances the Licensing Authority may waive the need for a sex
establishment licence. However, applicants should be aware that it is considered that
the waiver system is not a substitute for the licensing regime but may be useful in certain
borderline cases or where events are minor or temporary. Equally it may be an
appropriate alternative solution where clarity or regularisation is considered necessary.

An application for a waiver can either be made as part of an application for a licence or
on a separate basis. The Licensing Authority may grant a waiver if it considers that to
require a licence would be unreasonable or inappropriate.

In those cases where a waiver is granted the Licensing Authority will confirm, in writing,
to the applicant that such a waiver has been approved. The waiver can last for any such
period that the Licensing Authority think fit but equally it can be terminated by the
Authority at any time subject to a notice period of 28 days.

The Licensing Authority will consider such applications on an individual basis. However,
the Licensing Authority considers that in normal cases, licences should be sought for
licensable activities and waivers will be granted only in exceptional cases.

Exchange of Information

The Licensing Authority will process personal information in accordance with the Data
Protection Act 1998. Personal details will be held on a database and where the law
allows, may be shared with other departments within the Council to update details they
hold about you. The Council may also be required to disclose personal information to
third parties (such as Police, Department for Work and Pensions or Audit Commission for
the National Fraud Initiative) for the purposes of preventing or detecting crime or
apprehending or prosecuting offenders.

The Authority may from time to time exercise its powers under section 115 of the Crime
and Disorder Act 1988 to exchange data and information with the Police and other
partners to fulfil its statutory objective of reducing crime in the area.

Enforcement and Compliance

There are serious penalties for breaching the law relating to the control and supervision
of sex establishment premises. Historically, Southampton City Council has taken robust
action to prosecute individuals and businesses operating outside of the law and will
maintain this stance in order to ensure protection of the public and to enforce this policy.

As a consequence, the Licensing Authority will establish protocols with other statutory
agencies on enforcement issues. This is to enable the more effective deployment of staff
who are commonly engaged in enforcing licensing law and the inspection of licensed
premises. The aims of the protocol are to target agreed problem and high risk premises
which require greater attention while providing a lighter touch in respect of low risk
premises which are well run.

Page 124

Sex_Establishment_Policy 20130425 Page ten of ten © 2013 Southampton City Council



	Agenda
	6 APPLICATION FOR A RENEWAL OF A SEXUAL ENTERTAINMENT LICENCE - PLAYHOUSE, BASEMENT, 35 LONDON ROAD, SOUTHAMPTON SO15 2AD
	Appendix 1 - Application
	Appendix 2 - Current SEV Licence
	LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1982, SECTION 2

	Appendix 3 - Licensing Act 2003 Premises Licence
	Premises Licence
	Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and / or off supplies
	The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities 

	Appendix 4 - Representation from local resident
	Representation - Khatri.pdf
	1.0 Planning Permission
	2.0 Southampton City Council Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026.
	3.0 City Centre Area Action Plan (CCAAP)
	4.0 Crime Statistics
	5.0 Summary
	Appendix

	21_01139_FUL-REFULZ_-_REFUSAL_OF_FUL-1583062
	APPEAL DECISION - 3290972

	Appendix 5 - Representation from local resident
	Appendix 6 - Representation from local resident
	Appendix 7 - Representation from local resident
	Appendix 8 - Representation from local resident
	Appendix 9 - Home Office Guidance
	Appendix 10 - Sub-Committee Procedure Notes
	Special Procedure for the Licensing (General) Sub-Committee – Applications for Sex Establishment licences
	1.
	INTRODUCTION
	2.
	OBJECTORS
	3. 
	APPLICATION
	4.
	SUMMING UP
	5.
	CONSIDERATION OF DECISION - CONFIDENTIAL SESSION
	6.
	ANNOUNCEMENT OF DECISION
	Note:


	Appendix 11 - Sex Establishment Licensing Policy




